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| am pleased to present the annual results of Group Sense
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group Sense Group” or the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”) on behalf of
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) for the
shareholders’ perusal.

The Chinese government continued to provide industrial
policy support for the development of the magnesium
industry. On 23 January, 2017, the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, the Development and Reform
Commission, the Ministry of Science and Technology,
and the Ministry of Finance issued the “Guidelines for the
Development of New Materials Industries” (CGHif#IE 23 R
¥EF)) aiming at achieving breakthroughs for a number of
new materials and key process technology and equipment.
It also continues to improve competitiveness in the
international new material industry, achieve breakthroughs
in new materials in key application areas, make plans for
a batch of cutting-edge new materials, strengthen the
construction of a collaborative innovation system for new
material industries, accelerate the initial market cultivation
and improve the industry standards for the new materials.
All these provide development directions for magnesium-
based materials products.

The guidelines clearly proposed the key tasks for
magnesium materials development and related protection
measures, which support the research on magnesium and
aluminium alloy technology for the rail transport equipment,
the application of magnesium alloy and rare earth
magnesium (aluminium) alloy in the fields of automotive
dashboard, seat skeleton, steering wheel core and hub,
and also the application of high-performance composite
materials and the development of lightweight vehicles.

On 25 January 2017, the National Development and
Reform Commission formally released the “Catalogue
of Key Products and Services in Strategic Emerging
Industries" KBS M BMEXEHREMMRBEE B )),
which included high-performance magnesium alloys and
deformed magnesium alloys. Given the stringent regulations
for energy-saving and emissions reduction and the
rising demand for lightweight vehicles, high-performance
lightweight structural materials represented by magnesium
materials have tremendous development potential. With the
PRC’s strong support for magnesium materials, we believe
that the Group’s magnesium alloy business will boost amid
the favorable environment.
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In addition, the authorities earlier issued the “Nonferrous
Metals Industry Development Plan (2016-2020) (K& & &
BIXERREA(ZZE-—REZZ_ZFF)))(“The 13th Five-
Year Nonferrous Plan”), which continued to promote the
development of ten non-ferrous metals such as magnesium.
In the year of 2017, China’s magnesium production
increased by 3.78% vyear-on-year to 1.022 million tonnes;
the country’s magnesium exports amounted to 460,200
tonnes, an increase of 20.16% from 383,000 historical high
in 2016. Both the output and export volume achieved record
highs. The Magnesium industry will continue to expand
under the support and promotion of national policies, which
also provides the Group with a huge market momentum and
development space in the magnesium industry.

During the Year, the Group’s magnesium business has
achieved breakthrough development. In September 2017,
the Group announced the acquisition of China Rare Earth
Magnesium Technology Holdings Limited held by its parent
company Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited, and
its equity rights in the magnesium metal business. The
reorganisation was completed at the end of 2017. This is an
important milestone for the Group. After the reorganisation,
the Group is standing at a new starting point and has more
resources to better and more rapidly expand its magnesium
business and strive to become the largest manufacturer of
rare earth magnesium alloys in Asia, providing the market
with the highest quality metal magnesium and magnesium
alloy products.

In 2017, the Group continued to upgrade its production lines
located in its Xinjiang magnesium product manufacturing
base. In the third quarter, it also commenced to carry
out the construction of 30,000 tonnes metal magnesium
production lines (including magnesium alloy production).
After the completion of the overall expansion project in the
Xinjiang production base, the total magnesium alloy capacity
of the Group will reach 170,000 tonnes in the future. After
the optimization of the Group’s production lines through
technological transformation, the Group’s new production
facilities will be further improved, helping to accelerate the
development pace of the Group.

After the completion of restructuring, the Group will continue
to focus on its magnesium business and will explore new
markets for magnesium sales. The original electronic
business continues to rely on the original management
team to operate. As the country continues to provide strong
support to the development of the magnesium industry,
we will seize the development opportunity of the industry
to meet the high growth trend of magnesium materials and
bring the Group’s business to a higher level.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of the Company does not recommend any
payment of final dividend to the shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank our
shareholders, members of the Board, customers, bankers
and other partners for their great support. We will be faithful
to our duties and will make continual efforts to the future
business development as well as the creation of returns to
the shareholders of the Group.

By order of the Board
Shum Sai Chit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group achieved significant business development in
2017. During the Year, the Group successfully acquired
China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology Holdings Limited
("CRE”) owned by Century Sunshine Group Holdings
Limited (“Century Sunshine”) and its interests in magnesium
business. With the unremitting efforts of the Group’s
management team in improving production capacity and
increasing sales, the Group’s performance (excluding the
effect of merger accounting of CRE. Please see “FINANCIAL
REVIEW” section for details) turned around to profit during
the Year, with a significant increase in revenue by 105%,
and gross profit increased by 111%. During the Year, the
Group continued to increase investment in technological
transformation and upgrade of its production lines in the
Xinjiang base while improving the quality and increasing the
output of magnesium products.

A review on each business unit of the Group as follows:

After the Group completed the acquisition of the magnesium
business of Century Sunshine, its current production bases
of magnesium business are located in Hami City of Xinjiang
and Baishan City of Jilin Province. In 2017, the Group’s
continued to upgrade its production lines in the Xinjiang
production base. It started to build the first phase of its
newly added magnesium production line with capacity of
30,000 tonnes in the third quarter, including the production
of magnesium alloy products. After all production lines are
fully completed and put into production, the total magnesium
alloy production capacity of the Group will reach 170,000
tonnes.

The Group strives to increase its production capacity and
maintain the quality of products. All the products of the
Group’s magnesium production bases obtained ISO9001
certification, which indicates that the Group possesses high
quality technology and product. At present, the Group’s
magnesium products are mainly sold to distributors and
downstream users. The major sales network includes
Liaoning Province, Sichuan Province, Shandong Province,
Jiangsu Province, Henan Province and Hebei Province.
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Magnesium product plays an important role in the process of
automotive lightweighting. With the increasing awareness on
environmental protection and energy conservation globally,
various countries have established various emission and
fuel consumption standards for passenger vehicles. Weight
reduction of cars can cut down vehicle fuel consumption;
braking distance can be reduced and safety enhanced.
The demand on light weight vehicles is increasing among
automotive manufacturers given the global trend. Rare earth
magnesium is significant in reducing fuel consumption and
vehicle weight, and will become an important development
highlight in the automotive manufacturing market.

During the Year, the Group has commenced the trading
business of magnesium products to the PRC and overseas
and initiated to develop the overseas markets, extend the
international distribution networks and explore the probable
business opportunities put forward by “One Belt One Road”.

The performance of the Group’s manufacturing business unit
continues to improve. However, the recent strong Renminbi
and rising labour costs have increased operating costs. This
business unit will continue to strive to increase production
efficiency and improve operations so as to maintain its
competitiveness.

The significant increase in revenue from Japan has resulted
in a significant improvement in business performance and
a return to profitability. This business unit will continue to
expand its ODM business and product range to maintain
profit growth.

The revenue of the personal communication products
strategic business unit has also continued to grow. This
business unit will optimise the ecosystem, work with solution
providers and module suppliers to develop common
customers and promote business development.

8 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017
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Going forward, the demand market for magnesium alloy
products will continue to expand significantly. The trend
of light weight will coincide with the expansion of the
automotive industry and will create a huge demand for
magnesium alloy products; the market demand for 3C
products (computers, communications and consumer
electronics) will continue to grow, and demand on other
sectors such as medical and aerospace continued to
rise. The transportation sector represented by automotive
vehicles will remain the leader of the demand for magnesium
alloys. According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, China’s automobile production is expected
to increase from 28.1 million units in 2016 to 46.3 million
units in 2021. This will bring tremendous growth momentum
to the magnesium market.

The government continues to implement policies to support
market development for new materials and the magnesium
products industry. In January 2017, the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Ministry of Science and Technology
and the Ministry of Finance jointly issued the “Guidelines
for the Development of New Materials Industry” ({HTHI#E
#ILREIEM)), in which they proposed the key tasks for the
market development for magnesium materials, speeding up
the market structure adjustment for magnesium materials
and increasing the proportion of research and development
in the magnesium materials market. In addition, the Non-
ferrous Metals Industry Development Plan (2016-2020) of
the 13th Five-Year Plan (the “Plan”) also explicitly promotes
the market development for ten non-ferrous metals including
magnesium. The Plan estimated the consumption and
production of major non-ferrous metals in 2020. Magnesium,
listed as one of the five major varieties, will enjoy an annual
growth rate of 7.1%, the highest average annual growth rate
among the metals. According to the Plan the production of
magnesium will reach 1.3 million tonnes in 2020, a 9.6%
average annual growth rate in relevant to the production
of 900,000 tonnes magnesium in 2016. The magnesium
industry continues to grow rapidly given the support of
national policies.

The management will grasp the development opportunities
in the magnesium industry, accelerate the construction
of magnesium production bases and further improve the
product quality to provide the market with high-quality
magnesium products. At the same time, the management
will also strive to save energy and reduce consumption,
and explore potentials in implementing measures such
as staggering production to reduce costs and improve
corporate competitiveness, under the viable condition that
production capacity can cope with market demand.

B (B BRAR » 2017 BESHS 9
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Operating results for the years (excluding the effect of
merger accounting)

On 30 November 2017, the reorganization in relation to the
acquisition of China Rare Earth Magnesium Technology
Holdings Limited which is held by Fullocean Group Limited
(the “Fullocean Group”) were completed . As the Fullocean
Group and the Company are both ultimately controlled by
Century Sunshine, the business combinations have been
accounted for using the principles of merger accounting, in
which it is assumed that the financial effects of the Fullocean
Group have been taken up by the Group since 1 January
2016 in regardless of the completion of reorganization was
actually effected on 30 November 2017.

To visualise the actual financial performance of the Group
and present a sensible financial analysis to the stakeholders,
the accounting effects arising from the adoption of merger
accounting have been summarised and excluded as below:

Year ended 31 December 2017

As presented Less:

inthe Restatement

consolidated effect
statement of of merger Actual
profit or loss accounting performance

REE4 oAbt

BER BREZ
Fr 23l BlxeE BRRHA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FET
WA Revenue 1,487,331 (742,853) 744,478
EH Gross profit 370,453 (251,144) 119,309
REEZ LA Net profits for the year 184,067 (173,323) 10,744

RAEIRERB A Net profits attributable to the equity

JE5 55 7 owners of the Company 168,320 (157,608) 10,712
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Year ended 31 December 2016

As presented Less:
in the Restatement
consolidated effect
statement of of merger Actual
profit or loss accounting  performance
e A=Y
B BEREZ
el BigE ERKRE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FrET
WA Revenue 1,122,905 (759,229) 363,676
E A Gross profit 326,505 (270,043) 56,462
NEEZ@A(FEEFE Net profits/(loss) for the year
%) 158,352 (189,375) (31,023)
RN EIIAERE B AFE(E  Net profits/(loss) attributable
WA (E1EFE) to the equity owners of the
Company 137,061 (166,546) (29,485)

REBEE_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HIHF
B REEBE WA G 744,478,000 7T
(ZZ—7X% : 363,676,000/87T) * KF
EF105% TEZERAFRES S EBHE
£ FFH#)163% & 23,330MA AT BT A It
AR IE & IEE@WJ‘%Z&%%@T\
BRODRAER  UNREFRETEE
i&%fmﬁﬁ%iﬁ °

HE-_Z—+H5+-_A=+—HLHF
B 2 FEM# A&119,309,000/8 (==
— N 56,462,000/ 7T ) 0 IHFEEER
1M11%  TERFEESEBFHE EAUK
= %’ HEFTE -

Em“ﬂ&,\ﬁﬂﬁzﬁjtﬁii@
14,786,000/ (= T — X F:

4,642,000870) r TERAABEHAKF
SERARRFAZBME T I NIEL
BUHBEEBRMN -

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$744,478,000 (2016:
HK$363,676,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 105%, which is mainly driven by the increase in sale
volumes of the magnesium alloy business by approximately
163% to a level of 23,330 tonnes during the Year. Such
significant increases is mainly attributed by the unremitting
efforts of the Group’s management team in improving
production capacity and increasing sales arising from the
magnesium production base located in Xinjiang, the PRC.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$119,309,000 (2016: HK$56,462,000),
representing a year-on-year increase of 111%, which is
mainly driven by the increase in sale volumes of magnesium
alloy business as well as the the optimization of product mix.

The corporate and others expenses was increased to
approximately HK$14,786,000 (2016: HK$4,642,000) during
the year, which is mainly attributable by the non-recurring
professional fee charged for the re-organisation of the
Fullocean Group and financing activities of the Company
during the Year.
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The Group has recognised a significant improvement
to record a net profit of HK$10,744,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2017 as opposed to the net loss
of HK$31,023,000 recorded in the last financial year.
In addition, the net profits attributable to the equity
owner of the Group has been turnaround from a loss of
HK$29,485,000 in the last financial year to a profit of
HK$10,712,000 during the Year.

As supplemental information to present and summarise the
financial performance as presented in the consolidated
financial statements (taking into account the effect of merger
accounting), the revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$1,487,331,000 (2016: HK$1,122,905,000) for the year,
representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 32.5%
which was mainly supported by the increase in sales
volume of magnesium alloy products from 36,201 tonnes in
2016 to 49,495 tonnes in 2017. The uplifted sales volume
was mainly attributable to the increase in sales volume of
basic magnesium alloy products by 12,583 tonnes (with a
relatively lower selling prices and gross profit margin) mainly
contributed by the production base in Xinjiang. Besides the
commencement of magnesium products trading business
also led to additional sales volume. As the product mix of
the magnesium business was affected by the increased
contribution from the basic magnesium alloy products,
the overall gross profit margin dropped by approximately
4.2% from 29.1% in 2016 to 24.9% in 2017 and the average
selling price of magnesium alloy products decreased from
HK$24,388 per tonne in 2016 to HK$22,918 per tonne in
2017.

On 31 December 2017, the cash and cash equivalent
and pledged deposits of the Group were approximately
HK$206,835,000 (2016 (restated): HK$236,035,000).
The Group’s borrowings and convertible bonds as at 31
December 2017 were HK$462,082,000 (2016: (restated)
HK$355,453,000) and HK$318,684,000 (2016 (restated):
HK$Nil), respectively. The Group’'s borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars
and Renminbi with floating interest rates while the
convertible bond were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
with fixed interest rate.

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the
Group, defined as borrowings, divided by total assets,
was approximately 18%. The interest expenses was
approximately HK$17,507,000 during the year, and the
interest coverage of the Group is around 14.7 times.
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The Group’s existing cash resources together with the
steady cash flows generated from business activities are
sufficient to meet its business needs.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no contingent
liabilities (31 December 2016: nil).

FOREIGN CURRENCIES AND TREASURY
POLICY

Most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen, United States dollars or Renminbi. The usual treasury
policy of the Group is to manage significant currency
exposure and minimize currency risk whenever it may have
material impact to the Group. During the last twelve months
period, the Group did not engage in any interest rate or
currencies speculations.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has 63 employees (31
December 2016: 69 employees) in Hong Kong, 5 employees
(31 December 2016: 5 employees) in Japan and 1,541
employees (31 December 2016: 1,120 employees) in China,
representing an overall increase of approximately 35%. The
Group also provides other fringe benefits such as annual
leave, medical insurance and provident fund, etc. for its
staff.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks
and uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our
Group’s businesses. The followings are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by our Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below
which are not known to our Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or
affects ability to meet business objectives arising from
the movement in market demand, product prices, foreign
exchange rates, and interest rates. The management of our
Group keeps continually monitoring these exposures closely
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner against such risks.
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The Group mainly operates in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) and Hong Kong and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from primarily with respect to
Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollars, Japanese Yen and United
States Dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations. The Group’s
management does not expect the net foreign currency risk
from these activities to be significant and hence, the Group
does not presently hedge the foreign exchange risks.

The Group has planned to periodically reviews liquid assets
and liabilities held in currencies other than Hong Kong
Dollars to evaluate its foreign exchange risk exposure and
consider the usage of hedging instruments when necessary.

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and
considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner
when appropriate, through variety of means.

The Group has always been aware of the credit risk
exposure of our customers. In order to minimise the credit
risk, management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
procedures required and ensured that all clients were
regularly assessed and be kept track of their transaction
records and credit history.

Liquidity risk arises if the Group is unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to
obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing
liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flows and maintains
an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure
the ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the
impact from the of fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with functional departments of the
Group and its subsidiaries. Key function of the Group is to
guide their standard operating procedures, limits of authority
and reporting framework. Our management will assess
key operational exposures and effect raised in business
development regularly, implement relevant measures and
improve the internal control so that risk can be responsed
and mitigated on a timely and effective manner.
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Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of
extension of its return period relative to the expected
return or occurrence of losses on any particular investment
attributable to changes of external factors. The Group is
well aware of importance of exploring various business
opportunities and territories on a continual basis, and also
implement as the top agenda of the year. Key concern
of projects investment framework will be balancing risk
and return across different investments, and thus risk
assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper investment assessment and due diligence
procedures have been set up and detailed analysis will
be made before approving investments. Regular updates
on the progress of the investments of our Group would be
submitted to the Board.

Manpower risk means huge demand for talents because
of the Group’s rapid business development while at the
same time facing severe competition over specialists from
the industry and turnover of manpower. Our Group may
face the risk of not being able to recruit and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills,
experience and competence to cope with the expansion of
business which would meet the business objectives of our
Group. Our Group will conduct a thorough analysis over
its remuneration system, as well as incentive mechanism
and optimize the compensation structure so as to ensure
remuneration packages can align reasonably with market
standard and maintain its competitiveness. Meanwhile,
recruitment channels are broadened and the talent pool
of senior management are strengthened, so as to further
enhance the promotion opportunities and career path of
employees. Systematic staff training are also being further
enhanced to increase the overall effectiveness of training
and the dissemination of corporate cultures and values.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Environmental policies and performance mainly means
increasing attention of PRC government paid to
environmental rules and policies and more strict regulatory
requirements. The Group’s subsidiaries and newly acquired
enterprises commenced into operation for a long while
which might lag behind certain environmental and duty
requirements promulgated by PRC government. The
Group monitors impact on business development closely
raised from movements of environmental policy and
external factors. Acting in an environmentally responsible
manner and performing social responsibilities, the Group
is committed to improving and maintaining the long term
sustainability of the communities in which it operates. The
Group endeavours to comply with laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection and adopt effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction. Green initiatives and measures
have been adopted in daily operation of the Group. Such
initiatives include recycling of resources, energy saving
measures and water saving practices.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China while the
Company is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in mainland China and Hong Kong. During the
twelfth months ended 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this report, to the best of our knowledge, the Group
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in
mainland China and Hong Kong, and there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, which results significant loss and negative
impacts by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES AND KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

The number of employees of the Group was approximately
1,609 as at 31 December 2017. The remuneration of
employees was determined by the Group with reference
to their performance, work experience and current market
conditions. Employee benefits include annual leave, medical
insurance and provident fund scheme. There has been
no labour dispute or significant change in the relationship
with the employees that affect the normal operations of
the Group. The Directors believe that the Group maintains
admirable relations with its employees.
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Our Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners, shareholders, investors
and banks to achieve its long-term goals. To keep up with
our key stakeholders closely, the Group has formulated
corresponding scheme about investor relationship, and also
holds tailored activities from time to time, such as annual/
extraordinary general meetings, on-site visits, seminars
and road-shows. Accordingly, our senior management has
kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business latest update about development of the
Group with them when appropriate. During the year, there
was no material dispute between our Group and its business
partners or banks.

PROJECT OVERVIEW

The Group’s dolomite mine is situated in Baishan City, Jilin
Province, the PRC. The mine is operated by openpit method,
and therefore no additional exploration works are involved
or required. Only simple infrastructure works for open-pit
mining are involved in the development activities, and no
underground drilling or structural works are involved. The
dolomite mined is raw material for producing magnesium
products of the Group. The transportation cost for raw
material is relatively low due to the close proximity of the
mine to the production base of the Group.

The dolomite mine of the Group was reported under the
Chinese resource/reserve categories. As at 31 December
2017, the anticipated resource and reserve volumes were
determined based on the yearly reduction of quantity mined
to calculate the remaining resource and reserve volumes.
There is no material change in the assumptions of estimation
by the Group as compared with those previously disclosed.
The resource and reserve volumes was reviewed by the
Group’s internal geological experts. As compared with
the state as at 31 December 2016, there was no material
change in the resource estimate and ore reserve of the
dolomite mine.
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Note: Mining output represented the quantity of dolomite stock-in at
warehouse, including the annual quantity mined.

During 2017, the expenditures incurred in mining
activities were mainly for direct wages, materials, energy,
transportation, depreciation and amortisation, etc. Such
expenditures have been included in cost of sales and
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for 2017.

The expenditure incurred in mining activities of dolomite
for the year ended 31 December 2017 were approximately
HK$16,345,000 while the expenditure incurred in exploration
and development activities was HK$ Nil.
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the long-term development of the Group and
has devoted considerable efforts in identifying, formulating,
implementing and enhancing corporate governance
practices in accordance with the needs of the Group.
As mentioned below, the Company has established the
relevant committees/sub-committee and adopted certain
internal policies to improve internal controls and enhance
transparency of business operation of the Group with a view
to protect the interests of its stakeholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), save
for the deviations as follows:

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should
also attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders.

— Professor Meng Jian (being a non-executive Director)
was unable to attend the general meetings held on
26 May 2017, 4 July 2017, 21 November 2017 and 4
December 2017 as he was obliged to be away for other
matters.

— Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP (being a non-executive
Director) was unable to attend the general meetings
held on 26 May 2017, 4 July 2017, 21 November 2017
and 4 December 2017 as he was obliged to be away for
other matters.

— Mr. Kwong Ping Man (being an independent non-
executive Director) was unable to attend the general
meetings held on 26 May 2017 and 4 December 2017
as he was obliged to be away for other matters.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Group regarding securities transactions of the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) on terms no less
exactly than required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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THE BOARD

Currently, the Board comprises the following seven Directors:

Shum Sai Chit (Chairman)
Chi Bi Fen (Chief Executive Officer)

Professor Meng Jian
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP

Kwong Ping Man
Cheung Sound Poon
Kwan Ngai Kit

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall
strategies and policies of the Group, reviewing and
monitoring its financial performance, including preparing
and approving financial statements and overseeing
operational matters of the management, considering the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Daily
business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and board meetings are held at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices and agenda of regular board meetings are served
to all Directors at least fourteen days before the meetings to
ensure that all Directors are given the opportunity to attend
and to include matters in the agenda. Discussion materials
of regular board meetings are sent to all Directors for their
study at least three days prior to the meetings. Draft minutes
of board meetings are circulated to all Directors for review
and comments within a reasonable time after the meetings
prior to confirmation. Minutes are recorded in sufficient
detail of the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached.
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THE BOARD (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, eight board
meetings were held by the Company, and the individual
attendance rate of each Director at meetings of the Board,
its committees and General Meetings is as follows:

it/ Brzed
Attended/held
EX883 ENZReSE REZEE8E FMZEeEE HIEEZEE RREAS
Executive
Audit Nomination Remuneration Management Members
Committee Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings  Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
HTES Executive Directors
Tt Shum Sai Chit 8/8 — 17 — — 404
HEZ Chi Bi Fen 8/8 — - 17 — 0/4
FUTES Non-executive Directors
aRIE Professor Meng Jian 7/8 — — — — 0/4
BEF ATt Tam Wai Ho, Samson JpP 8/8 — _ _ _ 0/4
BIEHTES  Independent Non-
executive Directors
BR Kwong Ping Man 8/8 212 17 17 — 2/4
REK Cheung Sound Poon 8/8 2/2 — 1/1 — 44
BB Kwan Ngai Kit 8/8 2/2 111 — — 4/4

¥ EWAEBIE3.10(1) & (2) © AKX 3.10A
BZHRE  ARRBEETRHEE 2B
VIEITES MBIUIFRTEEFRIN
EVE—RZEAREESHIEBYBKE
BER EXgCWIZBILIERNTE
ERE FHHRAESASGEREB I EM
{ERIEL 2 FEREREK ©

E=xg B RYEFERRME - ¥
% KBREMEXR HEREREE -

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, sufficient number of Independent Non-executive
Directors have been appointed and at least one of the
remaining Independent Non-executive Directors has
appropriate accounting or related financial management
expertise The Board has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

The Company updates the Directors of the latest changes
in the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and other
applicable regulatory requirements from time to time. Apart
from encouraging the Directors to participate in continuous
professional development (“CPD”) courses to refresh and
enhance their knowledge and skills, the Company also
arranged an industry-related in-house seminar for the
Directors and provided them with reading materials relating
to the directors’ duties. All Directors have provided the
Company with their records of training they received during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

A summary of the trainings participated by the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

BEEEREEIEE
Types of continuous
professional
development

EE Directors training"***

HITES Executive Directors

YRR Shum Sai Chit B

B

NUE=PoN Chi Bi Fen B

FHITESE Non-executive Directors

R Professor Meng Jian B

EBES ATHt Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP B

BYEBTES Independent Non-executive Directors

BB R Kwong Ping Man ARB
A and B

RER Cheung Sound Poon AR B
A and B

FIESTE Kwan Ngai Kit AXB
A and B

Wizt Notes:

A HEBESIEIIRE

B: BMEWRE NYRARARREBHAESTHE
NEAE -~ R AN ELh 3 R B AR R B
EELEM&EHEN

A:  Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)

B: Reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the Company’s
business or directors’ duties and responsibilities, the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, etc.
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THE BOARD (continued)

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties of the Company in accordance
with the “Terms of Reference of Corporate Governance
Function” adopted by it:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
appropriate recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has performed the
following corporate governance duties:

e Reviewed and approved the contents of the Corporate
Governance Report included in the 2016 annual report
of the Company;

e Adopted the “Board Diversity Policy”; and
e Reviewed the Whistle-blowing Policy of the Group
to ensure the arrangements for employees to raise

concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting and internal control, etc. were adequate.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company are Mr. Shum Sai Chit and Ms. Chi Bi Fen
respectively. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer are clearly segregated and are not
exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is
principally responsible for the Group’s corporate planning
and financial management whereas the Chief Executive
Officer is principally responsible for the overall marketing
and sales strategies of the Group’s products.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors are fixed for a
specific term, and shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Company has set up four committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Management
Committee respectively. Each committee is delegated with
specific authorities by the Board in assisting the Board to
discharge its duties and to administer particular aspects
of the Group’s activities. The roles and functions of each
committee are summarized below:

The Audit Committee was established in 1999. The Company
has adopted Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee in
compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Cheung Sound Poon and Mr. Kwan
Ngai Kit.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee is
to provide an independent and professional advice on
financial reporting, to evaluate the effectiveness of internal
control (including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget) and the sufficiency of external and internal
audits of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

After each Audit Committee meeting, the chairman of the
Audit Committee will report to the Board of the significant
issues discussed by the Committee for the Board’s
information and/or consideration.

The Audit Committee has held two meetings in the year
ended 31 December 2017. The major tasks accomplished
by it during the year are summarized below:

Reviewed the final results for the period ended 31
December 2016 and the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2017, and confirmed that the
accounting principles and practices adopted as well as
the disclosures made in such financial statements were
appropriate, accurate and fair;

Reviewed the internal control procedures and risk
management matters;

Discussed with the auditors on the scope of audit for
the year ended 31 December 2017; and

Reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

The Remuneration Committee was established in 1996.
The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the
Remuneration Committee in compliance with code provision
B.1.2 of the Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
an Executive Director, namely Ms. Chi Bi Fen and two
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong
Ping Man (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Cheung Sound Poon.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure in relation to remuneration of the Directors
and senior management of the Company. It schedules
to meet at least once a year to review and determine the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
senior management and to make recommendation to the
Board of the remuneration of Non-executive Director. In
determining and approving the remuneration of Directors
and senior management of the Company, the Remuneration
Committee will take into consideration of various factors
such as market competitiveness, individual performance and
profitability of the Company and its business units.

The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting
in the year ended 31 December 2017 to review the
existing remuneration policies of the Directors and senior
management of the Company, etc.

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012.
The Company has adopted Terms of Reference of the
Nomination Committee with reference to code provision
A.5.2 of the Code. The Nomination Committee comprises
an Executive Director, namely Mr. Shum Sai Chit (chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man and Mr.
Kwan Ngai Kit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors, assessing the independence
of the Independent Non-executive Directors and monitoring
the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting in the year
ended 31 December 2017, together with by means of written
resolutions, to review and deal with the following major
issues:

e Reviewed the qualifications and experiences of
individual Directors as well as their roles and
responsibilities in the Group to ensure the existing
Board structure is fit for the business growth of the
Group; and

e Reviewed the degree of diversity of the existing Board.

The Executive Management Committee was established
in 2005 with written terms of reference to operate as a
general management committee under the authority of the
Board. Currently, the Executive Management Committee
comprises two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Shum Sai
Chit (chairman of the Executive Management Committee)
and Ms. Chi Bi Fen.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY SUMMARY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity
of its Board members. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy and competence, and the candidates will
be considered against certain objective criteria such as
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional qualifications, areas of experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services, etc. The ultimate decision
will be based on merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total
remunerations paid/payable by the Company to its external
auditors in respect of the audit services and non-audit

REEMT services are as follows:

FAT
PR 7% %8 5l Types of services HK$'000
FEIZR Audit services 2,559
H5 Total 2,559

EERERMBHRR2EME
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs and results. The
Group recorded a consolidated net profit of approximately
HK$184,067,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 45 to 54
of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Since 20 August 2015, Mr. Fan Kwok Man, Raymond has
been appointed as the Company Secretary. Mr. Fan holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Insurance, Financial
and Actuarial Analysis from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and he is member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and has over 9 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management
and corporate finance.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Fan has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
10% of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition to the Company’s registered office. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so
in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the “Companies Act”).

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act,
registered Shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal at a general meeting if they:

(a) represent not less than 5% of the total voting rights
of the Company at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b) are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolution(s) should be
duly signed by the registered Shareholder(s) concerned,
accompanied by a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office. The Company would
take appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements.
The Shareholder(s) concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

The Board welcomes views, enquires and concerns in relation
to the management and corporate governance of the Group
from Shareholders. Shareholders may at any time send their
enquires and/or concerns to the Board in writing by email
(gsl@gsl.com.hk), by fax ((852) 2802 2697) or by mail to the
principal place of business of the Company for follow up.

For shareholding enquiries, Shareholders may contact the
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

The Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company was posted on the websites of the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (“Stock Exchange”) on
20 March 2012 and there is no change in such constitutional
document during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibilities for risk management
and internal control of the Group. The system of internal
control is designed to manage and mitigate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives with reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Process Improvement and Internal Audit Sub-committee
was formed in 2002 to provide support to frontline functions
in improving business operations and maintaining internal
control. A comprehensive policy and standard governing the
process improvement and workflow, authority and integrity
of the staff, was promulgated in September 2006.

The Board has conducted annual review of the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group which covers the
review of risk management functions, financial, operational
and compliance controls, the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and their training
programmes and budget, etc.. The Board considered the
internal control system of the Group effective and adequate.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

The Company have formulated an inside information policy
providing guideline on handling inside information. The
Company regularly reminds the directors and employees
about compliance with all policies adopted by the Company
regarding inside information including the Model Code
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules in relation to
dealings in securities of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group is committed to enhance investor relationship by
increasing its transparency to the investment community.

The following measures have been taken by the Company
to keep investors informed of the latest developments and
news of the Group and to facilitate a two-way communication
between the Company and its Shareholders:

(a) Mailing corporate communication documents such
as interim reports, annual reports and circulars to the
Shareholders periodically and uploading the same on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(b) Publishing announcements through the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

(c) Making available of the Company’s corporate and
products information on its website;

(d) Organizing general meetings to facilitate direct
exchange of views between the Shareholders and the
management of the Company; and

(e) Encouraging investors to communicate with the
Company through the Company’s website from time to
time.

At the Company’s last AGM held on 26 May 2017, all the
resolutions relating to the adoption of financial statements,
re-election of Directors, reappointment of auditors and grant
of general mandates to issue and repurchase shares have
been duly passed. The forthcoming AGM of the Company is
scheduled to be held on 13 June 2018.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SHUM Sai Chit, age 60, Chairman of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Shum was the Managing Director
of Go Modern Limited which was principally engaged in
manufacturing of textile products and trading activities.
In 1984, Mr. Shum joined Fujian Textiles Import and
Export Corporation as a Manager to oversee importing
and exporting of textile products. Mr. Shum is a graduate
of Consumer Product Pricing and Statistics. Mr. Shum is
currently an executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509).

Ms. CHI Bi Fen, age 59, chief executive officer of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chi was the Deputy
General Manager of an electronics equipment company over
17 years. She has an extensive experience in accounting,
taxation and finance in the PRC for more than 15 years.
She is a graduate of Accounting and Finance. Ms. Chi is
currently an executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509).

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor MENG Jian, age 61, is a professor of State Key
Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, Changchun
Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of
Science. He is a deputy officer of Professional Committee
of Solid Science and New Materials of Chinese Society
of Rare Earth. He is also a director of Chinese Society of
Rare Earth and Nonferrous Metals Society of China. He is
an expert of the Association of China Rare Earth Industry
and China Magnesium Association. Professor Meng has
been engaging in research and development of rare earth
magnesium alloys and new materials. He has contributed to
the development and application of rare earth magnesium
alloys in China. Professor Meng majored in semiconducting
from Jilin University, and holds a master’'s degree from the
chemistry department of Chinese Academy of Science. He
holds a degree of doctor of Engineering from Toyohashi
University of Technology, Japan. Professor Meng is currently
a consultant of Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 509) for rare earth magnesium alloys projects.

32 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017



EFEREREEARMESN

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

FHITES(E)

EREEEtT ATH#t AWK A
—NNANEEERBERXKRE  ERE
BB ENBEBEIANEEL &
nEgLEg- BN —NAILZF
EEE TR eBRIEEEFIER
gl R —ANEFEEAEEB+X
HESE| BEETA_ZTTENEFEEC
T-—_FEEELLIEHEB(BAARK
R) BEIRAETARFRERS X
& BAEBREERETER &8
BHEAFEESABA BEITELESK
“ATEREEIERSE -

BYFHITES

BRXEE A+=m BABRMNDE
RIEBERARZEE - Z AR B
BARS - BEAERZE R A ETB
MEEEETFE - ARG KK
THRAEAB A5 F&5H o BLEMEE
ERBRTITARERR 2 EXSTEELE
e BLERBRMNAESHMAETEE
MEBGTMASEFEE  TAESD
RAMERAEE L - BAEBHTHK
TR AR AR RS - 3708) 2 B
FRNTESTE_ZT—RNFZALKBHEX
BEBREEFRAR(BRHARE  907)2
BEHMITESEE_Z—+EMA - B
EERBAULHELEBRERE QR
MR :509) EE(REDERERA
AI(RMHARS - 1181) - EEKEIERS
PR A B (B D 5% - 8493) M (E1E AR A
ggﬁ(ﬂ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ : 3789) 2 B IEELT

REREE A+t REDBE=ZS
B 7T = R AZ B4 I8 - SR04 B T Gary
W.K. Yam & Co. (CPA) Z =A% &R -
REEHRBBIBFET MZELR -
A—EENFE-_AZE T+ FHAH
M REEBEHLHBEXEETEREA
Al (R ARSR - 509) 2B FEMITEEF
BEZEEGER o

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. TAM Wai Ho, Samson JP, aged 54, graduated from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with a
Bachelor degree of Science (Hons), and later was awarded
the degree of Doctor of Philosophy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. In 1992, Dr Tam was awarded the
“Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong” and was named
one of the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons” in 1997. He
was an elected member of Legislative Council of Hong
Kong (Information Technology, 2008-2012) and is now
Chairman of Hong Kong Business Angel Network, Chairman
of Hong Kong Industry-University-Research Collaboration
Association, Partner of Inno Angel Funds, Vice Chairman of
the PRD Councils, Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KWONG Ping Man, age 53, is a director of O'Park
Corporate Services Limited which provides corporate
advisory services. Mr. Kwong had served as the chief
financial officer of various companies for almost seven years.
Mr. Kwong has over 15 years of experience in accounting,
finance and administration. He obtained a master’s degree
in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants, fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.
Mr. Kwong had been an independent non-executive director
of Yat Sing Holdings Ltd. (Stock code: 3708) until March
2016 and Elegance Optical International Holdings Ltd.
(Stock code: 907) until April 2017. Mr. Kwong is currently
an independent non-executive director of Century Sunshine
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Tang Palace
(China) Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1181), Dragon King
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8493) and Royal
Deluxe Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3789).

Mr. CHEUNG Sound Poon, age 57, is currently a senior
audit manager at Chui & Kwok (CPA). He was an audit
senior at Gary W. K. Yam & Co. (CPA). Mr. Cheung has over
35 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He was
an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of audit committee of Century Sunshine Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 509) between February 2004 and May
2007.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. KWAN Ngai Kit, aged 38, is currently the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Modern Dental Group
Limited (Stock Code: 3600). Mr. Kwan was the executive
director, the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of Vision Fame International Holding Limited (Stock
Code: 1315) from June 2014 to October 2016. Mr. Kwan
has over 10 years’ experience in auditing. He was a senior
manager in assurance department of Ernst & Young. He
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan holds a MBA
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
Bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Kwan is currently an independent
non-executive director of A & S Group (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 1737), Lai Group Holding Company Limited
(Stock Code: 8455) and Leyou Technologies Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1089).

PANEL OF SENIOR CONSULTANTS

Panel of Senior Consultants (the “Panel”’) of the Group has
strong technical background and expertise in magnesium
alloy smelting and research and development in new
materials. The appointment of the Panel is to provide the
Group with solid technical and resources measure for the
development of magnesium product business. Members’
remunerations of the Panel are based on the nature and
scope of consultancy services provided. There is no fixed
remuneration arrangement between the Group and the
Panel.

Mr. ZHANG Hongjie, aged 64, Scientific Technology
Consultant of the Group. He is a fellow of Chinese Academy
of Science and a researcher of Changchun Institute of
Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences and
a tutor of PhD students. He was honoured the Outstanding
Young Scholar Award of National Outstanding Youth Fund
and Hong Kong Qiu Shi Fund. He was also awarded as the
Expert with Outstanding Contributions in Jilin Province. Mr.
Zhang has been engaging in research and development for
rare earth alloys and new materials. He is the Deputy Chief
Scientist of National Rare Earth Fundamental Research.
He is also Officers of State Key Laboratory for Rare
Earth Resource Utilisation, and Rare Earth Luminescent
Professional Committee of Rare Earth Society. He holds a
Master’'s Degree in Science from Changchun Institute of
Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of Sciences. He is
undertaking a PhD at National Scientific Research Centre,
University of Bordeaux, France.
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PANEL OF SENIOR CONSULTANTS (continued)

Professor MENG Jian, aged 61, is a professor of State Key
Laboratory for Rare Earth Resource Utilisation, Changchun
Institute of Applied Chemistry of Chinese Academy of
Science. He is a deputy officer of Professional Committee of
Solid Science and New Materials of Chinese Society of Rare
Earth. He is also a director of Chinese Society of Rare Earth
and Nonferrous Metals Society of China. He is an expert
of the Association of China Rare Earth Industry and China
Magnesium Association. Professor Meng has been engaging
in research and development of rare earth magnesium alloys
and new materials. He has contributed to the development
and application of rare earth magnesium alloys in China.
Professor Meng majored in semiconducting from Jilin
University, and holds a master’'s degree from the chemistry
department of Chinese Academy of Science. He holds a
degree of doctor of Engineering from Toyohashi University
of Technology, Japan. Professor Meng is currently also a
non-executive director of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CUI Zikui, age 45, is responsible for the operation
management and business planning of the Group’s
magnesium business. Mr. Cui has a diploma in business
management. He has over 20 years of experience in the
magnesium industry. He joined the Group in 2015.

Mr. BAI Hai Sheng, age 49, is responsible for the research
and development and marketing strategy management of the
Group’s magnesium products. Mr. Bai is a graduate of Heat
Treatment of the Material Studies in the Taiyuan University
of Technology. He has over 20 years of experience in the
magnesium industry. He joined the Group in 2016.

Mr. LU Tianyuan, age 53, is responsible for the corporate
affairs management of the Group. Mr. Lu is a graduate of
Chinese Language and Literature and is an economist. He
has over 15 years of relevant experience in corporate affairs
management. Prior to joining the Group, he has worked in a
large alloy enterprise for over 25 years. He joined the Group
in 2015.

Mr. TAM Wai Tong, Thomas, age 56, is responsible for
the overall marketing and sales strategies of the Group’s
products. Mr. Tam has a Diploma in Electronic Engineering
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
over thirty years of experience in marketing electronic
components and consumer electronic products. He received
“Advanced Technology Development Award” of “Capital
Magazine’s Outstanding Information Technology and
Financial Enterprise Awards” in August 2001.
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The Board presents their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, joint ventures and an
associate are set out in notes 1, 16 and 17 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, including a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages
7 to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of
this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group recognises environmental protection is of vital
importance to the long-term development of the Group.
In order to minimise the environmental impact, the Group
will continue to review and improve the effectiveness of its
management practices from time to time. “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” will be published on or
before July 2018. For details, please refer to the Company’s
website.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
and the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 55 to 170.

No interim dividend was paid by the Company during the
year under review and the Board does not recommend any
payment of final dividend to Shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2017. The retained earnings of the Group as at
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$304,676,000.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2017:

(i) The Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for 7.6% and 27.7% respectively
of the Group’s total revenue.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 10.1% and 34.6% respectively
of the Group’s total purchases (not including purchases
of items which are of capital in nature).

According to the understanding of the Board, none of the
Directors, their associates or any Shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interest in the
five largest customers or the five largest suppliers.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities, and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated as appropriate, is set out on page 171. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution which was calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
(as amended). In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of approximately HK$1,560,077,000,
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Shum Sai Chit (Chairman)
Chi Bi Fen (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors:

Professor Meng Jian
Tam Wai Ho, Samson JpP
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Kwong Ping Man

Cheung Sound Poon

Kwan Ngai Kit

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Shum Sai Chit,
Professor Meng Jian and Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson will retire
by rotation and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at
the AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Ping Man, Mr.
Cheung Sound Poon and Mr. Kwan Ngai Kit, an annual
confirmation confirming their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 December 2017, a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was approved by the shareholder of the
Company. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the Directors or employees of the Group and
any substantial shareholder to subscribe for Shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share
options granted. The share options are exercisable only if
the Directors or employees remain in service to the Group
or substantial shareholder from the grant date of the share
options up to the designated exercisable period.

As at 31 December 2017, no option shares were granted or
outstanding under the Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors and
their associates in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules, were as follows:

FisgBRROBE (FR)
Number of ordinary shares held (long position)
BAER EERER HERT
(LBZEFA RiGER (BREZEHE REz
BB BHEH) (B fEER) 58) wEm B
Personal Family Corporate
interests (held interests  interests (held
as beneficial (interest of by controlled % of issued
Names of Directors owner) spouse) corporation) Total share capital
BER A4t 63,464,000 4,600,000 75,754,236 143,818,236 5.00
Tam Wai Ho, Samson Jp (H#3£ 1) (Note 1) (Hf3£2) (Note 2)

HiaE

1. ZERNEEHEESEBELIATHAILERRE
S KRR 2 51,464,000 fR (D -

2. 7% 75,754,236 f% % 17 PAEarnmill Holdings
Limited ([Earnmill]) 2 &2 & &5 © Earnmill &
—Z M Kiteway Assets Limited ([Kiteway )
X TTNB Profits Limited ([TTNB )95 &
2 A& v i Kiteway & TTNB 8] B B & 5
RPN EERLE2EHRE -

3. EEZBETARF#LIHIAEammillZES -

4. HE-Z—+FF+-A=+—HIt  FDAIZ
BT B8 56,574,390,058 %

Notes:

1. Such shares included the 51,464,000 shares which are jointly owned
by Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas.

2. The 75,754,236 shares are registered in the name of Earnmill Holdings
Limited (“Earnmill”), a company which is owned by Kiteway Assets
Limited (“Kiteway”) and TTNB Profits Limited (“TTNB”) in equal shares.
Kiteway and TTNB in turn are wholly owned by Dr. Tam Wai Ho,
Samson JP and Mr. Tam Wai Tong, Thomas respectively.

3.  Dr. Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP, is also a director of Earnmill.

4.  The total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December

2017 was 6,574,390,058 shares.
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(continued)
REEEERG 2ER (FE) Interests in the shares of associated corporations
(long position)

RERGIARARERE L EERYUE (FR)
Number of ordinary shares interested or
deemed to be interested (long position)

BARR AL $3 EHEEE
(UEREBA (BeR+iE BRTZRE
EEpE REZEER a6%H) Rik# t<25) ag 2B
Corporate
Personal interests % of issued
interests (held (held by share capital
Name of associated as beneficial Family controlled of associated
Names of Directors corporation owner) interests  corporation) Total  corporation
g B EEERERAT] 14,666,305 - — 14,666,305 0.32%
Shum Sai Chit ussloy A (Wit 1) (note 1)
Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited
(“Century Sunshine”)
BES t42F5 5% 12,352,499 — — 12,352,499 0.27%
Chi Bi Fen Century Sunshine (B1522) (note 2)
KEA Lesip 300,000 — — 300,000 0.007%
Cheung Sound Poon Century Sunshine (#1:£3) (note 3)
[ELS Lesih 3,839,797 — — 3,839,797 0.08%
Kwan Ngai Kit Century Sunshine (#1i£4) (note 4)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
(long position) (continued)

Notes:

(1) 14,666,305 shares in Century Sunshine are directly owned by Mr.
Shum Sai Chit.

(2) 12,352,499 shares in Century Sunshine are directly owned by Ms. Chi
Bi Fen.

(8) Such shares include the 300,000 shares in Century Sunshine which
are jointly owned by Mr. Cheung and his spouse.

(4) Such shares include the 2,560,010 shares in Century Sunshine which
are directly owned by Ms. Lee Man Ching, the spouse of Mr. Kwan
Ngai Kit, and 1,279,787 shares in Century Sunshine are the number of
underlying shares which may be issued to Ms. Lee Man Ching under
the options held.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors or their associates had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in
the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 December 2017, a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was approved by the shareholder of the
Company. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the Directors or employees of the Group and
any substantial shareholder to subscribe for Shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share
options granted. The share options are exercisable only if
the Directors or employees remain in service to the Group
or substantial shareholder from the grant date of the share
options up to the designated exercisable period.

As at 31 December 2017, no option shares were granted or
outstanding under the Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 32 to
35 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ interests in securities”, at no
time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, a permitted
indemnity provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance was in force for an indemnity against liability
incurred by the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Directors nor a connected entity of Directors had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
the business of the Group to which any of the Company’s
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2017, the register of substantial
shareholders kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO shows that other than the interests disclosed
above in respect of certain Directors, the following
Shareholder had notified the Company of relevant interests
and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company:

FrsEERr HEe T
REEHE RO E (IF8) BARZBE D
Number of ordinary

shares held % of issued

Name of Shareholder (long position) share capital

Ming Xin Developments Limited (#75% 1) (note 1) 4,761,117,434 72.42

New Bright Group Limited (#/7£2) (note 2) 4,761,117,434 72.42

A G R EIER AR AR (A 3) 4,761,117,434 72.42
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (note 3)

M E(HiE4) 4,761,117,434 72.42

Chi Wen Fu (note 4)
Win Union Limited (#7:#5) (note 5) 430,080,020 6.54
k& (Kit6) 430,080,020 6.54

Zhang Yi (note 6)
s -

(1) 4,761,117,434 &3 Ming Xin Developments
Limited Ex5HE A ©

(2) Ming Xin Developments Limite
Bright Group leltedZ 2 E W E
Wt ES LB EKIMmME New
Bright Group lelted?&ﬁﬁ%ﬁMmg Xin
givelopments Limited ¥ A #E 2z 2 23R M5

(3) New Bright Group Limited Att42f5 22
BHEAR - Bt - REHFRPEEATE
AR5 6 #5457 75 A Ming Xin Developments
Limited #EA @ 2 250 2= -

(4) X &E % £ & LB XMing Xin
Developments Limited 2 & £/ A 7)) B3R
K’\t? FI=9 22— A EFRRME - Bt - Bt

EHERBMERAME  wNEREREAES
l\/Iing Xin Developments Limited & #2252
2EIRAD 2 HE RS o

(5) 430,080,020 %1 Win Union Limited 25

A New
SR/NIC]

@ﬂq

o

u}

(6) Wm Union Limited lSRFLEEZEBRE © i
CES LR @E%ﬁ‘ﬁi?&ﬁ%
%Zﬁme Union Limited #8 #2522 B0
g/\ o

Note:

(1) 4,761,117,434 shares are beneficially owned by Ming Xin
Developments Limited;

(2) Ming Xin Developments Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of New
Bright Group Limited. As such, New Bright Group Limited is deemed
to be interested in all the shares in which Ming Xin Developments is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

(8) New Bright Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Century
Sunshine. As such, Century Sunshine is deemed to be interested in all
the shares in which Ming Xin Developments is interested by virtue of
the SFO

(4) Mr. Chi Wen Fu controls more than one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Century Sunshine (the ultimate holding
company of Ming Xin Developments Limited). As such, Mr. Chi Wen
Fu is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Ming Xin
Developments Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

(5) 430,080,020 shares are beneficially owned by Win Union Limited.

(6) Win Union Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Yi. As such, Mr.
Zhang Yi is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Win
Union Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Other than those disclosed in Note 41 to the financial
statements, there was no connected transaction during the
year and in prior period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules, as at the latest practical date prior to the
printing of this report.

AUDITORS

On 7 June 2017, Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the
Company and HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was
appointed as auditors of the Company on 4 July 2017 to fill
the vacancy so arising. Save for disclosed, there has been
no other change in the auditors of the Company during
the past three years. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
will retire and the Company will propose a resolution at its
forthcoming AGM to reappoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board

Mr. Shum Sai Chit
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2018
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

31/F, Gloucester Tower &6

The Landmark IR

11 Pedder Street FEITH 1159
Central EHES

Hong Kong HERTITKE3E

To the Shareholders of Group Sense (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 55 to 170, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

Impairment of trade receivables
Refer to note 3 and 22 to
the consolidated financial
statements.

As of 31 December 2017, the
Group had trade receivables
with gross amount of
approximately HK$306,334,000
and provision for impairment of
approximately HK$17,483,000.
The determination as to
whether a trade receivable is
collectable involved high level
of management judgement.
Specific factors management
considered include the age
of the balances, location
of customers, existence of
disputes, recent historical
payment patterns and any
information concerning
the creditworthiness of
counterparties. Management
used these information to
determine whether a provision
for impairment is required either
for a specific transaction or for a
customer’s balance overall.

EE

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to
management’'s impairment
assessment on trade receivables
included:

e Evaluating management’s
impairment assessment
included testing, on
a sample basis, the
underlying data used by
management to assess
the collectability of trade
receivables, such as an
aged trade receivable
analysis, payments from
customers;

e Testing the key aged
balances where no
provision was recognised
to check if there were
any objective evidences
of impairment. This
included sample checking
of payments received
subsequent to the year-
end date and reviewing
historical payment patterns;

e Selecting a sample of the
significant trade receivable
balances where a provision
for impairment was
recognised and understood
the rationale behind
management’'s judgement.
In order to evaluate these
judgements, we checked the
age of these balances, the
customers’ historical payment
patterns and any post year-
end payments; and

e Assessing the overall
provision for impairment,
we also considered the
consistency of management'’s
application of policy for
recognising provisions with
the prior years.

We consider the management
conclusion to be consistent with
the available information.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Refer to note 3 and 13 to
the consolidated financial
statements.

As of 31 December 2017, the
Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately
HK$1,588,620,000, which mainly
comprised leasehold land and
building of HK$507,971,000
and plant and machinery of
HK$649,776,000. A recent
history of losses of the Group is
an indicator of impairment for
property, plant and equipment
and hence an impairment
assessment is required. We
focused on this area because
the balance of property, plant
and equipment was significant
and the assessment process is
complex and highly subjective
which based on the selection
of appropriate comparables
other and assumptions such as
discount rate, future revenue.
The Group engaged an external
valuer to perform the valuation
for the recoverable amount of
the leasehold land and building
and plant and machinery.
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Our procedures in relation to
management’'s impairment
assessment included:

e Evaluating the independent
valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

e Assessing the
methodologies used and
the appropriateness of
the key assumption based
on our knowledge of the
relevant industry and using
our valuation experts;

e Challenging the
reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business
and industry; and

e (Checking, on a sampling
basis, the accounting and
relevance of the input data
used.

We found that the assumptions
were supported by the available
evidence.
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Key audit matter

Carrying value of inventories

Refer to note 3 and 21 to
the consolidated financial
statements.

As of 31 December 2017, the
Group had inventories net of
provision of approximately
HK$151,941,000, which
comprised of electronics
products and magnesium
products. The electronic
products are usually with short
life cycles, while magnesium
products are usually with longer
life span. The consumption
of inventories are subject
to changing consumer
demands and market trends
which increased the level
of judgement involved in
estimating inventory provisions.
Judgement was required to
assess the appropriate level
of provisioning for items which
may be ultimately obsoleted or
sold below cost as a result of a
reduction in customers’ demand.
Such judgements included
management’'s expectations
for future sales and inventory
liquidation plans.

EE

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to
management’s determination of
the carrying value of inventories
included:

e Assessing the process,
methods and assumptions
used to determine the
provision for slow-moving,
excess or obsolete items.
This included comparing
management’s calculations
for consistency against
those used in the prior
years and assessing the
provision policy adopted by
management by reference
to past usage or sales
history;

e Testing the reliability of the
underlying data used by
management to calculate
the inventory obsolescence
provisions by sample
checking of an inventory
ageing analysis and the
subsequent sales orders
and usage;

e Testing the accuracy of
the resultant calculation by
assessing the calculation
criteria and recalculating
the provision for the
inventories based on those
criteria; and

e For those items which were
identified as slowmoving,
excess or obsolete, we
assessing management'’s
calculation of net realisable
value by checking to the
latest or subsequent selling
prices.

We found the carrying values of
the inventories was supported
by the available evidence.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Acquisition of Fullocean Group Limited under common control

Refer to note 3 and 38 to
the consolidated financial
statements.

On 30 November 2017, the
Group acquired the entire
equity interest in Fullocean
Group Limited from Capital
Idea Investment Limited, and
Win Union Limited. The total
consideration was approximately
HK$1,752,000,000 included
3,700,000,000 new shares
was issued at an issue price
of HK$0.40 per share and 4%
coupon convertible bond in the
aggregate principal amount of
HK$420,000,000 was issued
to the vendor. The Group has
applied the merger accounting
method in accordance with
the Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations” issued
by HKICPA in the preparation
of the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our procedures in relation to
how the management account
the acquisition of Fullocean
Group Limited (“Fullocean”)
under common control:

e Obtain understanding
from the management on
how they account for the
acquisition of Fullocean;

e Evaluate whether the
accounting for the
acquisition complies with
the relevant HKFRSs; and

e (Checking, on a sample
basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the information
used.

We found the accounting for
the acquisition of Fullocean
were supported by the available
evidence.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 29 March 2017.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the
“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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HEARBYZEMBRENETEEEE The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

eERE- independent auditors’ report is Wong Sze Wai, Basilia.
BEEeSstMmEXRERATRE HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

2 E3-yu: 1] Certified Public Accountants

H5EE Wong Sze Wai, Basilia

HEFEEZ9 : PO5806 Practising Certificate Number: P0O5806

BB -/ \F=A=-++tH Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

54  Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017



FElRaREMZ2EKRAR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E2—tF —T—RF

2017 2016

ks FER FAT

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

(#eE%)

(Restated)

KA REVENUE 5 1,487,331 1,122,905

SHE B Cost of sales (1,116,878) (796,400)

EH Gross profit 370,453 326,505
HA RE AU 2 Other income and other gains,

FER net 5 21,491 24,483
$HE Moy #HX Selling and distribution expenses (42,154) (34,399)
TEZ H Administrative expenses (73,471) (47,650)
i kA Research and development

expenses (16,690) (20,098)
HMgEx - #58 Other operating expenses, net (3,840) (25,526)
M5 ER Finance costs 7 (17,507) (9,846)
FE(R % F & B8 Share of profits and losses of
BERA Joint ventures 1,087 1,695
N Associate 1 (1)
BANER PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 239,370 215,163
PRI T2 Income tax expense 10 (55,303) (56,811)
FEER PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 184,067 158,352
HitpZEKRA(E8) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME/(LOSS)
BEHEENSE Other comprehensive income/(loss)

EERMAMEE to be reclassified to profit or loss

WA (EE) : in subsequent periods:

BMEBINEE 2 Exchange differences on

M H ZRE translation of foreign operations 117,051 (118,810)
FEEZHEWBALRE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 301,118 39,542
JEIRFE R - Profit for the year attributable to:
KArERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 168,320 137,061
FEFE I Non-controlling interests 15,747 21,291
184,067 158,352
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-ZT—+tF+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016
B 5T FExT FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
JEIEEE2EUWALEE ©  Total comprehensive income for the
year attributable to:
KArRERFEEA Equity holders of the Company 280,588 28,828
FE1Z I 14 R 2 Non-controlling interests 20,530 10,714
301,118 39,542
AARERBFEA EARNINGS PER SHARE
EEESRAEF ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
B R #sE (BL) Basic and diluted (HK cents) 12 2.72#{lcents 2.23#{licents

BE B 2 Bt 5 A AN ARG B 75 R 3R 2 48 K BT The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
AN

g7 ° consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
N-ZE—+F+=H=+—H As at 31 December 2017

—E—+F AN
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
B & FEx FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(RE5)
(Restated)
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M BENERE Property, plant and equipment 13 1,588,620 1,259,103
AT LA ERE Prepaid land lease payments 14 70,565 68,144
BEEE Intangible assets 15 50,463 —
RIERE Mining rights 16 50,434 48,487
REBERAIZIEE Investments in joint ventures 17 6,490 5,362
R—EEE AR ZIEE Investment in an associate 18 18 17
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 19 3,000 6,840
REi®® Long term deposits 20 60 372
Wit Hes 25 8 A5 3K Payment for acquisition of patents — 50,049
BIEBRITIER Pledged bank deposits 24 26,084 31,587
JEMEBEERTR Total non-current assets 1,795,734 1,469,961
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
rE Inventories 21 151,941 140,842
JEWE SERZ R EWESE  Trade and bills receivables 22 296,988 210,500
A T ERIA Prepaid land lease payments 14 1,876 1,750
TENFIE - Re REMEIW Prepayments, deposits and other
RIE receivables 23 128,832 74,590
B —F& & RRIFIA Amount due from a joint venture 17 844 133
AIEHERE Available-for-sale investments 19 —_ 22,245
Al SRR R K Tax recoverable 1,835 1,706
EHEMERITER Pledged bank deposits 24 7,897 21,874
RekReFEIEE Cash and cash equivalents 24 172,854 182,574
MBNE EETR Total current assets 763,067 656,214
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB BRI Trade payables 25 113,516 49,696
HibENFKIBRESER  Other payables and accruals 26 95,349 76,826
A Borrowings 27 83,815 81,642
R Provision 28 1,042 933
FEASt — & B B A B FEHEHIIE Amount due to a non-controlling
RZHIE shareholder of a subsidiary 29 152 216
JE S B TK Tax payable 6,969 7,067
MEE B Total current liabilities 300,843 216,380
REBEERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 462,224 439,834
EEAERRBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 2,257,958 1,909,795
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
NZZE—+F+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2017

—E—+HF —E-RF
+=A +T=—A
=t-H =+—H
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
LiE=3 TAERT FAT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(ggE5)
(Restated)
FRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
WA Deferred revenue 31 73,585 66,176
AR E S Convertible bond 32 318,684 —
B Borrowings 27 378,267 273,811
REFRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 33 19,972 3,099
FERT AR R 518 Amounts due to shareholders 30 344,206 407,774
FEREEEEER Total non-current liabilities 1,134,714 750,860
BEFRE Net assets 1,123,244 1,158,935
s EQUITY
ERAREBA Equity attributable to owners
PEfhfEm of the Company
BEITIRA Issued capital 34 657,439 287,439
1 Reserves 36 473,641 728,637
1,131,080 1,016,076
FE 1 MR Non-controlling interests (7,836) 142,859
G F k] Total equity 1,123,244 1,158,935
MRESSEFIT0B 2R EMBWMERNRZ The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 170
T-N\FZA-TtHAKESTEEMAR were approved and authorised for issued by the board of

| Al

I

BETE - WHTIEFKEREE directors on 27 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

X

Mt ELE MmEF L+
Mr. Shum Sai Chit Ms. Chi Bi Fen
2 EFE
Director Director

BEM 2 B s B ARG A B 15 sk &k 2 AR BF The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
a7 e consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZT—+tF+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

KAAREREARE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
B &4RE T8EES BN (RiER)/ s
BEfTRE  EER BE GHEE RERE HEEE  GHRE  AAEE  NERE  REMA it & 2
Convertible (Accumulated
Share  Capital bonds Exchange  losses)/ Non-
Issued  premium redemption  Special equity ~ Statutory  Merger Other ~ fluctuation  Retained controlling
capifal ~ account  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  eamings  Sub-otal interests Total

fin T TR TR TR TR TAn T TEn T TEm T Thn
HKBO0O  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSO0O  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS00

o HER i o HER O KEOR § , ,
B () (i &) (i i) M) () () M)
Notes (i) & Note (i) &  Note ()&
Note (i) (i Note (i)~ Note(i) (il (W) Notef)  Notef)  Notef)
W=E-NE-A-B Asat1 Janvary 2016,
(BEZFE)  asprevously eported AT 601060 "o (819 - - o 5iT M08 (BM5%) 40765 (663 486502
AGRLREs)z  Effect of merger of entiy under
RIYE common coriol - - - - S OME ST (234 (58 4846 A48 18408 680
RZE-7E-A-B Asat1January 2016
(i=7) (restated) 267439 601,060 49 (60.819) - 54,832 80,597 (17,098) 6,928 33890 %7248 132145 1119393
EERT Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 13060 197061 21291 158,352
EEEWRMER  Other comprehensive loss
MRHER for he year, net of income
fax:
BEBIERAEEL Bichange differences arising
EXZE from translation offoreign
operaons - - - - - - - — (182 — (08 (057)  (118810)
EERT(EE)/MA Total comprehensive (loss)/
% income for the year - - - - - - - — (108233 137,061 28628 10714 30,542
ERERE Transfer o resenve - - - - - 17080 - - - (17080) - - -
RZE-NEFZR  Asat 31 December 2016 and
+-AR=% 1 January 2017
—tE-f-A 267439 601,060 49 (60819) - 71892 80,597 (17058)  (101,305) 163891 1016076 142859 1,158,935
ERR Profit for he year - - - - - - - - — 16830 168320 15747 184067
EEEBRERA - Other comprehensive income
HRHER : for the year, net of income
fax:
BEBIERAEEL Buchange diferences arising
EXzE from translations of foreign
Operations - - - - - - - - 112268 - 112268 4783 117,051
EESERALE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - - — 112268 168320 2805588 2050 301,118
WER RS, Acquistion of subsidiary under
HEBAZ(IER  common control net with
HETER) shares issuing expenses 370000 99017 - — 10360 —(1581,149) - - — (148482)  (171.205) (319,707
ERTRRESER Deferred tax related to
LEERR issuanoe of convertble
bond - - - ) - - - - (1w )
BR25R Transfer o reserve - = - - - 1I5% - = - (175%) = - -
BZF—tETZF  Asal 31 December 2017
=1-A 657439 1560077 49 (60.819) 86,548 89427 (1500592  (17,098) 10963 304676 1,131,080 (7.836) 1123244

R (BB BRAR » 2017 BERE 59



FeERERE
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HE-_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

B EE

(iii)

(iv)

i
o)

e

hWERHEBESSEEMBRRARTNEEH
#5 473,641,000 T(ZZT — NE(KEH) :
728,637,000 1) °

BANEE M % st A A B B (T e R 8 B 1) By
ARRIREBNEREN A AR RO EE °

EERMBEEIZEMEB QRSP EARKLM
(TP B ) AE M IS IMR AT 10% K &
ETZEEERBHRENESD

RBEHBIKS 2 MB AR 2 ABERAR KR
BMzHBURRIROER - ZEMBRRARD
10% 2 Bk T {585 1% 8 A1 (12 p B B 0k = B
BMROE R ENE R TR BIEXFE
FEEREE B A R M E A 50% - ZHEE
ARG HENBARBEFE 2EE - IR
B AR EEEHIE IS AR Z A o

BETERRZE2EEEEERERREMIE
HEBERBRMONE TR AEEHRAE
HAIRBAEAREAORIEEIREED © %
SESAHARBER RN E LTS
E > TERRRDIK

AHRERRA X ARES 2 BRIRA A6
GEARESE

fif 2 M S R AR AR B BA F5 3Rk 2 A AR BB

o

Note:

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves
of HK$473,641,000 (2016 (restated): HK$728,637,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the
Shares of the Company which was transferred from the Company’s
retained earnings upon repurchase and cancellation of Shares by the
Company.

Statutory reserve mainly represents the fund set aside by the
subsidiaries based on 10% of their net profit of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) statutory financial statements and that for the
purpose of certain safety production activities.

In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries
established in the PRC and the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
these subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of their profit after
income tax as recorded in the PRC statutory financial statements as
statutory reserve, except where the reserve fund balance has reached
50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The reserve fund can
only be used to make good the subsidiaries’ previous years’ losses,
to expand the subsidiaries’ production operations or to increase the
capital of the subsidiaries.

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the State Administration
of Work Safety of the PRC and other relevant regulatory bodies, the
Group is required to set aside funds mainly for mining of dolomite
and serpentine at prescribed rates. These funds can be used for
maintenance and/ or improvements of safety of these activities, and is
not available for distribution to shareholders.

Merger reserve was arising on the application of merger accounting
method in relation to the combination with entity under common
control.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Bz Bz
:g_‘tiﬁ 3 /\E
+=A=+-8 +-A=t+—H
tFE IFFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Lk TER THT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(=7)
(Restated)
ReEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BAD& R Profit before tax 239,370 215,163
FHE Adjustments for:
&R Finance costs 7 17,507 9,846
WE/\ﬁa A5 Al Share of profit of joint ventures (1,087) (1,695)
T%ST REE AR R,/ Share of (profit)/loss of an associate
718 ) 1
HATHBWA Bank interest income 5 (1,813) (2,893)
ﬁﬁ“{@% BEREMBEB 2  Gain on disposal of items of property,
W plant and equipment 5 (2,444) (89)
HERMTMAERE W Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease
payment 5 (249) o
mE - BELRSEINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 42,652 38,346
R T E T R Recognition of prepaid land lease
payments 1,816 1,770
BH R E R AN 2 B3 Amortisation of patent and deferred
development costs 3,258 397
RIEHE 2 B3 Amortisation of mining right 1,666 1,684
ELERBERAZRE Impairment of deferred
development costs — 359
—FAtHERE ZRE Impairment of an available-for-sale
investments 3,840 460
BHTERE Provision of slow moving inventories 3,400 7,058
W E 5 ERFURME Impairment of trade receivables 532 784
RS 5 AR SRR (B 1 o Reversal of impairment of trade receivables (102) (279)
Hi UGB RERE Reversal of impairment of other receivables — (5,495)
REEFER 2 EE Write-back of long-aged accruals - (3,059)
308,345 262,358
FEEM Increase in inventories (9,741) (36,354)
JEHK%J%@E AL EMEZEI  Increase in trade and bill receivables (70,885) (77,966)
FENRIE  REREMEKFIE Increase in prepayments, deposits and other
20 receivables (46,057) (50,190)
KRR Decrease in long-term deposits 312 21
Y —R&a &N RFIA (Increase)/decrease in amount due from a
(&m),/md joint venture (752) 728
ERESEZEM/ (RL) Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 60,602 (12,550)
HuENAZIBREMEER  Increase in other payables and accruals
Il 9,204 1,531
EmiREREE M,/ OhD) Increase/(decrease) in provision for product
warranties 106 (9)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BHE—

T—t+F+— F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Bz S
:‘E—tﬁi 3 /\¢
+=A=+-8 +-A=1+—H
LEE IFFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Uik TER THT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(& =71)
(Restated)
REXBME RS Cash generated from operations 251,134 87,569
BEIMEIE Overseas taxes paid (56,375) (57,539)
ReXBzRERA Net cash flows generated from operating
FER activities 194,759 30,030
REXKzHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
FIEWA Interest received 791 1,982
BRI EZURD /()  Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank
deposits 22,686 (33,197)
KA—HAEBRARZBKBUWA  Dividend received from a joint venture — 585
BAYE  BERAEER Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment 13 (270,763) (76,964)
HEME  WENRRZEBEEZ  Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
ik & plant and equipment 4,250 148
ﬁ’iﬁﬁifﬂ%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁz Proceeds from disposal of prepaid land lesse
PG payment 491 —
A4t 4R 1 Increase in available-for-sale investments — (23,380)
ﬁ’%—fﬁ\ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments 22,245 —
BAME  BENMRZREERZ Increase in long term deposits for purchases
RS i'le] of items of property, plant and equipment — (316)
EHHTTM% Decrease in time deposits - 222,192
g —RKB AR Acquisition of a subsidiary — (57,429)
REXKBHLORE) /WA Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
JEiEE investing activities (220,300) 33,621
MEXBRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BITERR ISR ESR Transaction cost of issue of ordinary shares
X558 and convertible bond (3,357) —
HKER Finance costs (9,273) (7,970)
%TJ\Fﬁ?%%’K Proceeds from borrowings 206,359 36,595
BEER Repayment of borrowings (122,910) (94,654)
BRI ASE N Increase in deferred revenue 2,307 1,426
Hﬁ%%%’i‘}@w Decrease in shareholder’s loan (68,045) (54,818)
e — %WE AIERHIARER 2 (Decrease)/increase in an amount due to a
HECHD),/ L non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (64) 216
BEXBZLRERA/ (R Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
F 38 financing activities 5,017 (119,205)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
HE-ZT—+tF+—-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

'z BE
Bl of: 3 “E—REF
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LHEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FiasE FERT FTAT
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(F=E35)
(Restated)
RERBLEEER 2HMPFE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (20,524) (55,554)
FOzRekREEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 182,574 256,840
HNEEXBERE - FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 10,804 (18,712)
FHRzBeRHALEEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 172,854 182,574
HERELZEEERE# oM ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
B MIRITE Cash and bank balances 24 172,854 142,574
FEREBRER Non-pledged time deposits 24 — 40,000
R A BRI ESIE 24 R Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
ReEEER the consolidated statement of
financial position 172,854 182,574

BEMT 2 B 5T B A AR & B 7S 2k 2 4 Ak &R The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
a7 ° consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

RAREEER

BEBB)ARAR(TEARRA )R
—ERBREIMRIZZERAR -
RATZFBLEMIBNESNEE
KRAOBEERBEIF BRI AESF 611
B 1105 = °

RAFEER - NEEZ RS REE
KHE & B AR Em MR - ®
EMHE R RETEE(TODM]) E
m BEFEHER  BAABHREMR
RHE T RERT ©

REFZEBR  ARBlzEEERR
AIARRBR XS EMAIA R
Ming Xin Development Limited -
MEREER AR SR EBRELES
FEft A2 2 & Alpha Sino Limited ©

A BHREABTETD 2
5l BITEARRZINEE S KR -
BRrBEAI  PIAEBEHEEAA
EREOZTUHE(TET) -

ARBZEEZWMBRRZFBNAT

itA/
&R iR AL

Place of incorporation/

BRAEER/
AMRAEE ZARY HHl FEER
Nominal value of
issued ordinary share/  equity attributable  voting power  Principal

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Group Sense (International) Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
Suite 1105, 11th Floor, Tower 6, The Gateway, 9 Canton
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

During the year, the Group was involved in the
manufacture and sale of magnesium products, and
design, manufacture and sale of original design
manufacturing products (“ODM products”), electronic
dictionary products, personal communication products,
provision of electronic manufacturing services.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Ming Xin Development
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and the ultimate holding company is Alpha Sino
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as
the functional currency of the Company. All values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
as follows:

ARARERE RERAE

Percentage of Proportion of

Name registration and business  registered capital to the Company held activities
B BE
Direct  Indirect
BN HERREARAT B 187 - 100 100% REZK
Hong Kong New Materials Industry - Hong Kong HKS1 Investment Holding
Investments Limited
MBIl ARAR Gl ARH 171,800,000 - 100 100% RERHELE
(2R BEBER

Xinjiang Tengxiang Magnesium ~ PRC
Products Company Limited
(“XTMP")

RMB171,800,000

Manufacture and trading
of magnesium related
products
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1. AAIREEER(E) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
AHREL/ BRIEER/ ARAEERE FERAE
t# EE AMRAEE ZERY wHl  EER
Nominal value of Percentage of Proportion of
Place of incorporation/  issued ordinary share/  equity attributable  voting power  Principal
Name registration and business  registered capital to the Company held activities
=t |
Direct  Indirect
AlTAZEBEREARAR R MRS RREARS - 100 100% RERHECEBAEER
280,332,0007C
Baishan City Tianan Magnesium  The PRC Registered and paid Manufacturing and trading
Resources Company Limited up capital of of magnesium-related
RMB280,332,000 products
PEBERRERERAR i 1031087 - 100 100% REAR
China Rare Earth Magnesium Hong Kong HK$10,310 Investment holdings
Technology Holdings Limited
SEORNETARAR" il 65,000,000/ 70 - 100 100% HERHEETER
Global Asia High-tech Electronics  The PRC HK$65,000,000 Manufacture and trading
Co,, Ltd." of electronic products
Group Sense (Holding) Limited ~ ZBRZEE 3000%T - 100 100%  REER
British Virgin Islands (BVI") ~ US$3,000 Investment holding
Group Sense (S.E.A.) Limited ABRAES 17 100 - 100%  REER
BVI USS$1 Investment Holding
Group Sense Investment Limted ~ EBRLES 1% 100 - 100%  REER
BVI US§1 Investment Holding
BERRAA 0 ERR1,0008T - 100 100%  FHRHE
ERZRTS ETEm
REEERD
200,000 47"
Group Sense Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Design and trading of
HK$1,000 electronic products
Non-voting 5%
deferred shares
HK$200,000”
BEREARAR &b 2RI - 100 100%  REER
Group Sense Manufactory Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
Company Limited
EEBBRRARAA BB 2T - 100 100%  RARHEETEM
Group Sense Mobile-Tech Limited  Hong Kong HK$2 Design and trading of

electronic products
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1. AEAREEER(E)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

AT/ BRAEER/ ARAEERE BERAE
tH EE AMRAEE LB wHl  XEER
Nominal value of Percentage of Proportion of
Place of incorporation/  issued ordinary share/  equity attributable  voting power  Principal
Name registration and business  registered capital to the Company held activities
B BB
Direct Indirect
SNl AP B 60,000,000H - 100 100%  RitRHE
ETEm
Kabushiki Kaisha Group Sense*  Japan JPY60,000,000 Design and trading of
electronic products
BRIAABEMHEARLT  wE ARH 25,500,000 - 51 51%  BRfta
(T kA" REAR R
PRC RMB25,500,000 Provision of software and
information technology
services
Bt sE - Notes:

(1) ZINERF

(2) BRI M EIRRE A
AR AU R A& 2 385 5 H R ]
BRRAGEANRAEG LREZHER - TRE
REBRR2EEFADIK

(3) RHBIKIZZFIAERE

EREINESRREARE I AFE
FERBEARFESARANEBEES
BZI2HBH2AREMBLRFE - E
ERA - REEMME QR ZFHIER
BYEMBRILE -

21 RBEE

REBZMEHRIDRIEF B A
RERM 2 EEMBRE LR (BT
PBRBHM MG LR FEGE
QTR BT MRE) B
NRE REINEE R ARG 5K EE
MEMMmER -

(1)  Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

(2) The deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends or to
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of
the Company or to participate in any distribution on winding up.

(3) Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinances.
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21 RBEE(E) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

BIR T B R 2 AP
SHEME TG ERESN - ABH
BERELRAERE < ELAA—
REERAERBAENAEAREL
AFfE -

AN EAMSLEENTERHES
FRSHPHEEEMEBEEREE
FI 2 B mMAEZERESA
HEBRATS A E M A ERITE
AT - EfEFTEERBEZATE
B AEEgEEEERBELH
B BumiE2EENEHHEY
BEJEBETEREZEZHE - 5
HER /IR AGETBREBEEM
T AFEHRLEEET - EES
B 5 R4 RIS 2 SR &R IS (R 2 LARR
BEEZNRRS BB LFELE
17HRBBEACHERS  UEKEAD
T EEERZEREVIEAFEZE
(FlanB B e ERF 257 2 7] 15
FEKIEBSTELFE IR 2FH
BE)BRID o

AN - B REmME - AFERE
AN EAFE 2B AZBE 28
FIRE Rz A SR ER AT ER
EZEEN - HAE— —SH=H #H
R

s FHBABEBREBNER
Hi ] VS LA IR T 4530 5 2 H
LEERABMRBECRE

BE) ;

s F_HWMABEBREREES R
ZMEAIN BEKAE A
B ARE T wEHKNKE
&) &

s FZABMABBREEXARZ
AR A BUE -

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for certain available-for-sale
investments which have been measured at fair value,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

e |evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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BHE—

2.1

mEEXE(E)

RiFa BB RBEAR R REM
BRrl(SBAKREDRBE_Z
—tE+ - A=T—BHIEFEZMHK
HE - HBELQ ﬂ%$@ﬂbﬁ%iﬁ
Bt ER(RREGHIEER

$El&ﬁ$ﬁw&§%ﬁ%xjﬁ
RIEFRE LR WAL BEHR
&ﬁ%Z%ﬁﬂm%$§E%ﬁw
BREERERD RN 2 RERE
M)FEERR - BEAFZEFIE -

EARR AN AREZ KB R EERIE
%Kﬁ%&m%ﬁﬁwﬁﬂﬁ'$%
BZ ErAHERE MBI A GE
ERHPREERBES - B

(a) BEBEREEZEMTRZERFEA
pALPA=R kS

(b) TeEME LI ERZHER ;
K

(c) AEBZHRERNEBEEIRTZE -

B /B8 X B 2 A F5 R T PR AR B AR 1 A
MHERRERE N —HEFEE - B
RAZEEAARNEERGEGIRE B
HIE TR S MBMBRAEER
FIEGIRER L2 BHILE

Bas R EMEERAIR B ZZHEKER
DEBNARESRAIES A RIFHE
B R - B E S EBIEEH X
REDFEHRERITFHER - IASE
ARRBzEERBE  #mE - W
A XHMERASEKE R ﬂZﬁ
RPNBRLRE  IREAKREESE
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WS B MIGRBRPTE M 2 = TRIE

BTERZ —HAXZELRES KL
BesHHEERTHRREERIE
HIE - BRI AARERES - B

£E%£¢ﬂ%'%¢%ﬁx%A%
H o

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.
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21 RBEE(E) 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

fi AN S2 B R KB~ R 2 B - Al
THEER()ZMBAR 2 EE(RR
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If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combinations under common control

For a combination with a company under common
control, the merger accounting method will be
applied. The principle of merger accounting is a way
to combine companies under common control as
though the business of the acquiree had always been
carried out by the acquirer. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements represent the consolidated results,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated financial
position of the Group as if any such combination had
occurred from the date when the Company and the
acquiree first came under common control (i.e. no
fair value adjustment on the date of combination is
required). The difference between the consideration
and carrying amount at the time of combination is
recognised in equity. The effects of all transactions
between the Group and the acquiree, whether occurring
before or after the combination, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Comparative amounts are presented as
if the acquiree had been combined at the end of the
previous reporting period. The transaction costs for
the combination will be expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
Income.
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2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new and revised standard,
amendments and interpretations (“new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA, which are effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2017. A summary of the new HKFRSs are set
out as below:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle

In the opinion of directors, except as described below,
the application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

70 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017



MIBWRMEE (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

222 BERRIBBEZNE (E)

(&)

ERETERE 7 RIETRETE

RETEER] (BB Gt ERIE 77
EFREERBIRHBEEEN - <
MHRREMEEEBZ=EAMOE
BRBSRERARE LD ARENE

MATAERFEERREERARS K
BeFEARGR(BREINEES K
B3R 5 ()57 78 B RO B TR 3% ) IR 1 /Y
gﬂ CFHEREBEEBAELRENE

ARG ERE7HRUER) BREE
BRELEERERIRSREL
HHARRSAREMRENRERE
ROBRBELTHHERERE W
BE - HSAM R ERTE RS R
BELDEH(HERMETMEENA
HiERER) °

BEEIBEREREERE T
FTELBEMNNUTESH (ANEES
R (V@ERESRELH ; (i) AE
SR R B A B Sk H At ZEAE A9

RAELNHED : (i) LR
FHMELRDRATERDHY
®) -

AFER] R Bm e # B M E R — 18
A RRF IR E T e m & A 8
PRELRENRTRAREHRNEH
Bk o LS - RFERTRI AR - MEIRD

FELBEESERRMEEREE
LB EHHE -

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments in Disclosure Initiative (Amendments
to HKAS 7) come with the objective that entities shall
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities by improving information
about (i) changes in an entity’s liabilities that relate to
financing activities in the statement of cash flows; and
(ii) the availability of cash and cash equivalents and
restrictions affecting an entity’s decisions to use the
cash and cash equivalent balances (including foreign
exchange controls or tax implications associated with
cash repatriation).

The HKAS 7 (Amendments) defines liabilities arising
from financing activities as liabilities “for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities”. It also stresses that the new disclosure
requirements also relate to changes in financial assets if
they meet the same definition.

The proposed amendments would require an entity
to disclose the following changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities (to the extent necessary): (i)
changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising
from obtaining, or losing, control of subsidiaries or
other businesses; and (iii) other non-cash changes (for
example, the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates and changes in fair values).

The amendments state that one way to fulfil the new
disclosure requirement is to provide a reconciliation
between the opening and closing balances in the
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from
financing activities. Also, the amendments state that
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
must be disclosed separately from changes in other
assets and liabilities.
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230 EMEBEERERNE BT 2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
AR KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

ANEE W EIZF AT ERME R
RERRF ] MRS BBV RS

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

AR effective:

E%EW#”WEBU%%F SRIE HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

ERRBRLENE 5% REEFANIHMA HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

ERRRRLEAZ 1658 ME° HKFRS 16 Leases?

%‘/Eﬁﬁ’zfmiﬁw% Rieah’ HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

B (ERHHEER HNEZHREMRE HK (IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
ZEg)— E‘%*%% QZ%E Consideration’

EE(ERBRERE  MEHERITREH’ HK (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments®

ZE8e)— REENH

E/ﬁﬁﬁ*fﬁﬁw%%ﬁ WRARFR 598 Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-
4] Ritg' based Payment Transactions'
BRYBREERNELY  EREANKREED Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
3l Z4FRBANER HKFRS 4 Insurance Contract’
EBABRE LR
EoNERIA"
EANKRLEREE ARAREZRIENS Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
3l 12 Compensations®
BAMBREEAZ 0% & ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬂﬁ?‘éﬁ aka Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
RERGHENZ DY ARFAEELER and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®
3l g
BRI RS ES| EERANKREE] Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
F15%E3T ZRREEPEN Contracts with Customers'
WA
BESHEAE19%ET RERA] Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits®
BRETERE8RET NUELARSELT Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
L RE’ Ventures?
BRE RS 28K (EREBHBREED Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
“T-REE-F-R 2014-2016 Cycle‘
ﬁﬂ%?ﬁrﬁkz
—&5
EESENZA0RET BRRENE' Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property’
EEMBRERAET  AEMBRE “ﬁﬁ‘l‘ Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2015-2017
ik ] Cycle®
B ER E&LZ
1 N NE— B2 BEEsE 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

EHRAR - A FFHRERER -
2 MZE-NF-A-BRZERABZF
EHRAER - £ FHERIER -

3 R

7€ A BAsk 2 1% Fin ey F E BRI AERK -

4 RZZE_—F—A—HIZEBHAZT
EHRARR - RFFIRATER °

2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021, with earlier application permitted.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of
vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of
a share-based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employee’s tax obligation associated with
the share-based payment; and the accounting where
a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification
from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting
conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception
so that a share-based payment transaction with net
share settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms
and conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the
financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. During 2016,
the Group performed a high-level assessment of the
impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This preliminary
assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes arising from further
detailed analyses or additional reasonable and
supportable information being made available to the
Group in the future. The expected impacts arising from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 are summarised as follows:
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The Group does not expect that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair
value all financial assets currently held at fair value.
Equity investments currently held as available for
sale will be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the investments are
intended to be held for the foreseeable future and
the Group expects to apply the option to present
fair value changes in other comprehensive income.
Gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive
income for the equity investments cannot be
recycled to profit or loss when the investments are
derecognised.

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt
instruments recorded at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, lease
receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at
fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9,
to be recorded based on an expected credit loss
model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis.

In general, the directors anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of
HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the
Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
cost upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors, if the
expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment
loss to be recognised by the Group as at 1
January 2018 would be increased as compared
to the accumulated amount recognised under
HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit
losses provision on trade receivables. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss
model would reduce the opening retained profits
and increase the deferred tax assets at 1 January
2018.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. The Directors have
assessed the effects of applying the new standard on
the Group’s financial statements and does not expect
a significant impact on the amounts reported on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in the furture.

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been
added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address
the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus
agent and licences of intellectual property, and
transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard.

Based on the current business model, the directors
do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 15 would result
in significant impact on the amounts reported on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the
future. However, there will be additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosures upon the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine
those payments. Lessees will generally recognise the
amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle
as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases.

As set out in Note 42 of the financial statements,
total operating lease commitments of the Group as
at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$7,627,000 and the amount of contract with
original lease term over 12 months was approximately
HK$4,143,000. The Directors do not expect the adoption
of HKFRS 16 would result in significant impact on
the Group’s financial performance, but it is expected
that certain portion of the lease commitments will be
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

78  Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017



MB|RME (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2A4BEREHHEME 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

e B ARERARBRHBAET
DR 20% 2 B AN SRR A] A %
BEATEN AR - EAFERTE
D EURFE AR E E N TG RIS L BR
BV - B R I B A R 2 ) 4E Lk
KR e

RERRE—EBoERY Bt B
ZHEAAREHHE T HEE QT
HFEEZ AN - KREEHRES
W ERB D ZFLHENIEFIE - ERA
RN BRAERIRTER B D FIE
BET —BRBRFE -

AEBR—BERAREERAZI
B AR ERA  WAKREREG
ZBEFERETRERBIER 5
RER B M BHIRLERA

POLICIES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in an associate and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of an associate and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associate or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of an associate or joint ventures
is included as part of the Group’s investments in an
associate or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

82 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017



MIBWRMEE (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2QABERETHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

FEMEENRAFENERT TS
SREHZEENZSBMKEE
X H & T HE A AR A S = A & AEE
ZEENTIS2HEMELNZER
REEXRFHBRANRTRIBEREAERT
DEBEUAHTERTENFEETE
IEEMEMBEN SR ABRNRE
ERDERATABRBAER

FTB R R E 3 RE R FE
MEERBEBENERY QA FEAEER
B s BEANZERBAZERIZIA
TRFESFEDRE

F—% — ERERAERAR
R IR R
CRag)

EF-R — HERERATVEAEM
EEBERNAER
(B AR)REE
WABRMBETA

F=F — HERHEQFEHEM
EEEANTAER
RIKE@ A BRI
BIA

IR B R ERN AP HRRIERD
BENBEMS @ AREFEENE R
THREHFEDB(ERH R FE
AAEERMEBEANRERBAER
EERRBELETASZRES -

POLICIES (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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2QA4BEREHTHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
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annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and goodwill), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit and
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease

buildings terms or 3%
Leasehold 25%
improvements

Furniture, fixtures 6% to 25%
and equipment

Plant and machinery  10% to 25%

Tooling and moulds 25% to 50%

Motor vehicles 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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POLICIES (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are
not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on
a prospective basis.
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POLICIES (continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Mining rights, including transferred exploration and
evaluation assets, are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. The mining
rights are amortised on the production quantities over
the total estimated mineral reserve. Mining rights are
written off to the profit or loss if the mining property is
abandoned.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.
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POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss
in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned
whilst holding the available-for-sale financial investments
are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

R (B BRAR « 2017 BERSE 89



MBWMRME (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE2—Z—+F+=-A=+—HIL¥E For the year ended 31 December 2017

2QA4BEREHTHEME(E) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

TREE(KHER  FRERMEE
SBUeREEMRN 2 —MH)EE
ENBERT B R (A AKER
AV BIRRKRBER) -

s REEWIREAREZEFNCDHE
oK

s AEEDEZRHENUEEWHENRD
MEZERN  HEAERENB
F LB MAERBERNLER N
BRERBEEREXNBRHEE
=FEZEMA: B@AKREELE
5B B 2 KB A Rl & B a2
& 0 B(b) AR E I B R IR
BEERBAAERR KL% -
BEEREEE JIEH/HE

HARBEEEECEERICRERE
ZHENEREIBF o - KA
AR BLEZ A A R A R B A (2] ¥
ARBRRE - IIREREEZEALR
BEE KB R N O HnEeE
BEEZEGIE  AKEERIREA
SHENBEEEERRCEREE - &
ZIER N - AEETERERAR o
BENEEROBEAERRRAKH
RENENMETNEELESE -

NERTEAFE2ACEBNEE -
DiREERREERAKE AT REHRE
KEENZRSRESENBREE

=
= -°

POLICIES (continued)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’'s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)
The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, borrowings, an amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
amounts due to shareholders and convertible bond.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Convertible Bonds

The component parts of compound instruments
(convertible notes) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument financial instruments.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar nonconvertible instruments.
This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised
cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income
tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bonds, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis or weighted average method and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.
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POLICIES (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

S (B) BRAR » 2017 BERE 97



MBWMRME (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
T—+F+ = A=+—H |FFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE—

2.4

EXRSHEEBE(E)

. %W%Qﬂ —HBERNRINEE
R AR A K AR R A R 1

E’ EIETR IR S E R ERERRN
E%ET NGB Y STiE

ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁ
REOERIEEE -

EETRIB B E < FREEN S E RS 5
K%%*ﬁﬁﬁ%%$ﬁﬂ%ﬁi%
Z R R E AT B I P A sl RB D iR
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%%to*ﬁmﬁkm
REENBE®RSHRENE - WHE
BRI BER &SRB AT Tim FI 8 P 8 3K af
TLLHE§§&W@%T% BEAR
AR IEE IR E E R

Lkmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfuﬁﬁ*éﬁw
""""" HHY AR EERZERHERE
2 WiIRERBREIRE B A

R BRER(RBRBAD]) REZE -

B e /AR MITHNGERHIBEEE
NEBRIBaERE  BREHEE
EER—ERHN AR RE—TREHE
B8 - BRERIAE E ] BIRET IR
BEGMEHKE -

WA TIR B] gE A B F 2 8 R R AN &
KU A g r] SEBTE R L [ 5l B AR
=7 .

(a) REMBLER  HEHEAEL IR
[\ g2 K [o] a2 15 = B 5K B A B
WEAEBEATNBRIGTHEE R
sk ERREEEm2ER
1

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;
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POLICIES (continued)

(b) service fee income, when the services have been
rendered; and

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution staff
retirement scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for its employees (including certain directors), the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
ORSO Scheme. When an employee leaves the ORSO
Scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employer
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant

amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.

Share Options Granted to Employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
the fair value
of services received is determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity

satisfying specified vesting conditions,

(employee compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
if any,
is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding

original estimates during the vesting period,

adjustment to employee compensation reserve.

For share options that are vested immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted

is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised,

reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

R (B BRAR « 2017 BERSE 101



MBWMRME (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
HE2—Z—+F+=-A=+—HIL¥E For the year ended 31 December 2017

24EXREFTHRBME(E)

HETHBINBAR SERE N —H
LRRIZNEEE RBTAINEE -
RBEMR  WELXCEERAR
REHRER CERBRERARNR]LZ
EREE - MLFEEZIBaERAF
W2 IR ERBE DA

PREESE 2 IE X ZRET AR M EEUA
R B2FREN KB o HE&8s D
X RBETEREZARSIINE
BEBZEEEBRAZRNL -

R U BB o R 75 P EE AR O P 2 I W B
TEENHEELRABRASREA
FEAZRNAEBREIIEBNEE
MEE  TRIEHRERTE -

REERERERME @ BINIBL
AR eRETIARERE B EER
ZERBE LSBT - BINEB AR R
BERARAFAEL 2KEERE
5§§L‘A$¢W2M%$i’ﬂlﬁ$?@§%
BT e

BRAATHRARAEEZH

(a) fHEATAL  BIRZA
THIREARRE AR

(i) #EHISFEES A

AT

jd
TEEA
(G
=

e

(i) IKAEERMEAZE
715K

(i) AAEEHHBFRRNEE
BIEBAR -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group ;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group ; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the group or the Group parent.

An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the group or
an entity related to the group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.
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POLICIES (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependants of the person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, mining rights and
available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost

The Group evaluates whether property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, mining rights and
available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost have
suffered any impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2.4. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs represent the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs to sell or its value-in-use. The
calculations of fair value less costs to sell or value-in-
use require the use of estimates. During the year, the
Group did not provide any impairment for property,
plant and equipment and mining rights but provided
approximately of HK$3,840,000 for available-for-sale
financial assets carried at cost (2016: HK$460,000) and
HK$NIl for intangible asset (2016: HK$359,000).

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and mining rights

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation/ amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and mining right. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and mining rights of similar nature
and functions and the mineral reserve determined
by independent technical adviser. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to market conditions.
Management will increase the depreciation/amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
the Group did not change the estimated useful lives of
investment properties, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and mining rights.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
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(continued)

Warranty provision

The Group gives warranties of one to two years on
certain products and undertakes to repair or replace
items that fail to perform satisfactorily. Significant
judgement is required when determining the warranty
expenses. The Group estimates the warranty expenses
based on the actual repair and item replacement costs
incurred for the products sold in the last 24 months.
Where the warranty expenses incurred are different
from the original provision, the difference would impact
on profit or loss in the period in which the additional
warranty expenses are incurred. During the year, the
Group had provided approximately HK$303,000 for
product warranty provision (2016: HK$349,000).

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The impairment of trade and other receivables are
based on the ongoing evaluation of collectability and
ageing analysis of the outstanding receivables and
on management’s judgment. From time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade and other receivables are called
into doubts, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, provision may be required. Certain
receivables may be initially identified as collectable,
yet subsequently become uncollectable and result in
a subsequent write-off of the related receivables to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Changes in the collectability
of trade and other receivables for which provisions are
not made could affect our results of operations. During
the year, the Group has provided approximately of
HK$532,000 for impairment on trade receivables (2016:
HK$784,000).

Estimated provision for inventories and write-down
of inventories to net realisable value

The management of the Group reviews the inventories
listing on a product-by-product basis at the end of the
reporting period. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
During the year, the Group has provided approximately
HK$3,400,000 for impairment of inventories (2016:
HK$7,058,000).

106 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017



MB|RME (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3.

TESHER(E)

Frig®t
AEBERBERDEERAZNAE
B BETRPMREAENREHIARE
EBTHEE - AEEREA SEIMNL
IREI B EE - SAEBHIRIAE E
REE - MxSFRNKRPIAGL
HENERENEETR  AEEZRK
TEERBEEEL RN BT
iAo

REERHES - ARBRBESRBE
BRI R - AR HEEE
T :

(a) EBEERODBRRERHEES
BEAEREEmR

(b) EABRERDBERRT - BE
KMIHESERMER

(c) RESEmMDERHG - BUERIA
EODMEmMNEFEH#EER K
RHUEETRIERS + &

(d) EEREEMDBLSERAEBER
BEBZEERA X BE
MEEIER -

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

(continued)

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
may be uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the magnesium products segment manufactures
and sells magnesium related products;

(b) the personal communication products segment
designs, manufactures and sells a range of
communications products;

(c) the strategic products segment designs,
manufactures and sells ODM products and
electronic dictionary products and provides
electronic manufacturing services; and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises

corporate income, expenses, asset and liability
items related to the Group’s investment activities.
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—F—+F+=-H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit before tax except that interest
income, finance costs, impairment of available-for-sale
investments, share of profits and losses of joint ventures
and an associate are excluded from this measurement.

Segment assets exclude investments in joint ventures
and associate, available-for-sale investments, amounts
due from associate and joint ventures, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other
unallocated head office assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude head office borrowings,
an amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, amounts due to shareholders and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

4. EBIFER(GE)

SREER  BABAER REER LEREM g
Personal
Magnesium  communication Strategic Corporate
products products products and others Total
T TR ThT Tin TR
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ-Z—t%1+=H For the year ended
=t-HLEFE 31 December 2017
oBEA: Segment revenue:
RINRE P E Sales to external customers 1,158,261 68,277 260,793 — 1,487,331
NIPFE Segment results 262,847 (1,131) 10,886 (14,786) 257816
ik - Reconciliation:
WA nterest income 1,813
AN ERERE Impairment of an available-for-
sale investments (3,840)
BBER Finance costs (17,507)
EHEE R Share of profit of joint ventures 1,087
(i —RBEZAREF  Share of profit of an associate 1
BLATR A Profit before tax 239,370
PHEE Segment assets 2,112,592 36,342 192,222 7810 2,348,966
8% Reconciliation:
APEEE Unallocated assets 209,835
EERR Total assets 2,558,801
ARAE Segment liabilities 507,678 37,011 66,238 6,426 617,353
ik - Reconciliation:
*OEAR Unallocated Tiabilities 818,204
afaRa Total liabilities 1,435,557
HEthBHER - Other segment information:
MEREH Depreciation and amortisation 43,361 1,025 3,928 1,078 49,392
BARY* \ Capital expenditure* 2,020,245 1,496 1,018 4 2,022,763
HEWE - BERRE  Gain on disposal of items of
BB 7 property, plant and equipment — (467) (2,226) — (2,693)
FHEERRE Provision of slow moving
‘ inventories — — 3,400 — 3,400
EmRERE Product warranty provision — 219 84 — 303
BEEKE Z5RTUAE  Reversal of impairment of trade
‘ receivables — — (102) — (102)
FEWE SRR E Impairment of trade receivables — — 532 — 532

* BAHTEREAEVE BMELEE
EBEXFEEBERAANRELD
1,752,000,000 7T - WEMFBEHEL
HMEHA-—Z—+tF+—A=+HHA

o

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and the consideration of acquisition of Fullocean
Group Limited of approximately HK$1,752,000,000. For more
details of the acquisition, please refer to the announcement date
30 November 2017.
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BHE—

4. XBBERE)

(continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

tBiEm  EARNER RBER EREL aE
Personal
Magnesium  communication Strategic Corporate
products products products and others Total
TAL TAL TiT T TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(BE7) (L E51)
(Restated) (Restated)
BZ-Z-7"E1T=H For the year ended
=t-ALEE 31 December 2016
AHBA Segment revenue:
MR P 3 E Sales to external customers 891,250 58,692 172,963 — 1,122,905
NERAE Segment results 238,156 (12,006 (626) (4,642) 220,882
ik - Reconciliation:
MEWA nterest income 2,893
AENERERE Impairment of an available-for-
sale investments (460)
HRER Finance costs (9,846)
EEEERAER Share of profits of joint ventures 1,695
JElR—FBE ARIEE  Share of losses of an associate (1)
BADGE A Profit before tax 215,163
AHEE Segment assets 1,659,173 46,825 146,589 1400 1,853,987
ik Reconciliation:
AOMEE Unallocated assets 272,188
BEGE Total assets 2,126,175
AHEE Segment liabilities 466,271 18,569 51,806 1,204 537,850
k- Reconciliation:
AOEAE Unallocated Tiabilities 429,390
A% Total liabilities 967,240
Hitrp3EH Other segment information:
EREHE Depreciation and amortisation 33,097 954 6,071 1,075 42,197
ERFREKARE Impairment of deferred
development cost — 358 1 — 359
BARX Capital expenditure 86,435 122 786 22 87,365
HENE  BERREE Gain on disposal of items of
Epdl e property, plant and equipment — (23) (66) = (89)
R EEE Provision of slow moving
inventories — 5,614 1,444 = 7,058
EmRERE Product warranty provision = 271 78 = 349
BEAERERREREBE Reversal of unutilised product
warranty provision — (72) — — (72)
BOXHESER Write-back of long-aged accruals (3,059) — — — (3,059)
B EWERZERE  Reversal of impairment of other
receivables — — (5,495) — (5,495)
BEERE SEIURE  Reversal of impairment of frade
receivables (279) — — — (279)
FEWE 5 IR TR E Impairment of trade receivables 192 — 592 — 784

* BAHXBEAEDE  BENHRME -

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment.
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4. EBIBERGE)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

(a) REMAREFEFZWA (a) Revenue from external customers
—E—tF TR

2017 2016

FET FHT

HK$°000 HK$'000

(&&E5)

(Restated)

AR Japan 210,250 129,867

BH Hong Kong 42,371 49,715

R Middle East 2,261 2,855

= Taiwan 14,329 6,105

BOM Europe 52,770 17,371
R E (FBRIN) Mainland China (other than Hong

Kong) 1,143,489 911,569

=M North America — 57

E2 Korea 2,331 301

HAh Others 19,530 5,065

1,487,331 1,122,905

PR AERIREFREMZ

The revenue information above is based on

Bl o the locations of the customers.
(b) kRBEE (b) Non-current assets
—E—tF =K
2017 2016
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
B (FBEBRIN) Mainland China (other than Hong Kong) 1,785,487 1,454,803
B Hong Kong 7,222 8,289
HAb Others 25 29

1,792,734 1,463,121

ESEREEEE IR EEME
W23 TEFEAHEERE -

RAFERFERERE—RFE 2
EANREETEN10% A LA o

The non-current assets information above
is based on the locations of the assets and
excludes available-for-sale investments.

No sales to a single customer contributed 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue during the
current year and prior year.
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5. WA~ EBIR AR WS - HEE 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER

GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods

WARARFERNDHEERNERE

EFERHEEE RS SITMEENS sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts
58 o during the year.
Ug A - B A R UGS - SBEE AT I An analysis of revenue and other income and gains, net
T is as follows:
—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
THET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
($&E5)
(Restated)
WA Revenue
HE S m Sale of goods 1,487,331 1,122,905
Hblr A Other income
RITHBUA Bank interest income 1,813 2,893
RIS E WA Service fee income 1,982 3,729
SHERER Sales of scrap materials 8,125 7,286
HAth, Others 6,878 10,486
18,798 24,394
Hinlezs - B8 Other gains, net
HEYE - BFEKEHIER Gain on disposal of items of property,
Z Wz plant and equipment 2,444 89
HEBNTHWBEFREZWE  Gain on disposal of prepaid land
lease payment 249 —
2,693 89
ﬁfﬂ%)\&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁé Total other income and
REE - FE other gains, net 21,491 24,483
g
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6. HiAlmF 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEBZHEradE Mg (5FA)TF The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
=S (crediting):
—E—+tF —T—F
2017 2016
FHET ARG
HK$’000 HK$'000
(5 =E5)
(Restated)
HEFERAR Cost of inventories sold* 936,078 717,283
e Depreciation 42,652 38,346
HERBNEEREA Recognition of prepaid lease payments 1,816 1,770
ERAE R 5 Amortisation of mining right 1,666 1,684
B EEEE Amortisation of intangible assets 3,258 —
FR9E M 3 X2 i Research and development expenses:
3 SE R B PR AN 8 Deferred development costs amortised — 397
B B 32 R AR B Impairment of deferred development —_ 359
costs
FERXZ Current year expenditure 16,690 19,342
16,690 20,098
THREFLEEHEETN 2 Minimum lease payments under
=EHEENK operating leases in respect of land
and buildings 3,606 4,115
ZEE B 2 Auditors’ remuneration
— F|a RS — Audit Service 2,559 1,700
— FEEETIRTE — Non-audit Service — —
& B a2 Employee benefit expense (including
(BEEEFHM) directors’ remuneration)
TE  HekBEYEN Wages and salaries and benefits
in kind 140,401 132,440
BE2FTEIHER Pension scheme contributions 5,631 2,734
146,032 135,174
BEEREEZLEETE Operating expense due to the idle
capacity” — 25,066
HEDE - HE REE Gain on disposal of property, plant and
2 W equipment (2,444) (89)
HE TR A ERIE Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease
s payment (249) —
N AERE - R Foreign exchange differences, net** (12,149) (3,447)
HHETERE" Provision of slow moving inventories” 3,400 7,058
EmRERE Product warranty provision 303 349
B REREMRREREE  Reversal of unutilised warranty provision — (72)
BOSHESER Write-back of long-aged accurals — (3,059)
AREERERE Impairment of an available-for-sale
investment* 3,840 460
JEURE B ERTORE Impairment of trade receivables*** 532 784
% 1 e I E 5 Bk /TA/UZTE Reversal of impairment of trade
. receivables*** (102) (279)
P (o] B b & W R IERUE Reversal of impairment of other
receivables** — (5,495)
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. BiADEF (&)

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

fORARAERREMEERARZIEE !
B | or loss and other comprehensive income
* AR EERKHEMEEKRARZIEM -

@%.S'Zﬁﬁ FEE ]

Included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit

Included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

> ARG BEEREMEERARZIITH ** Included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
S H statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
xx *H\i?/:.\ia SR EMEEmBRARZIEE *** Included in “Selling and distribution expenses” in the
DEH I consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income
7. HKEH 7. FINANCE COSTS
—g—tf C—FAF
2017 2016
FTHERT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
(&=E5)
(Restated)
BARAFAZHEEZRTR  Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
E A8 TS repayable within five years 13,742 1,362
B@Ei&i%ﬂa%ZﬁEﬁ& Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
H A {8 3 H S repayable after five years 7,745 17,567
Tiﬁlﬂxﬁ%ﬂu Interest on convertible bonds 3,765 —
25,252 18,929
B ABBREBEKANE  Less: Amount capitalised in the cost
AMre#E of qualifying asset (7,745) (9,083)
17,507 9,846
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

8. EEM < 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
BELEHRA FBERRKRIE Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) & (f) & A LA to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
AI(BBREZFZER)RAIE 23 the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
ATHEFANEEMELOT Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
S BE
—E-tF SN
+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LFE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FTET TAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
e Fees 190 183
ERAFEANMBYIENITES The fees paid to independent non-executive
M EET directors during the year were as follows:
BZE BE
—E—+t& “T—REF
+=ZRA=+—-HB +ZA=+—H
HFE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FTET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Kwong Ping Man 30 30
REAR Cheung Sound Poon 30 30
BRI (B EE (7)) Chen Gang (Note (i) — 6
BB (BRRE (ii)) Kwan Ngai Kit (Note (ii)) 30 17
90 83
MNAFEAL ERBELIENITE There were no other emoluments payable to the
EYNHEHMMES(ZFT—RF: independent non-executive directors during the year
) o (2016: Nil).
B sE - Note:
(i) PFREIEEEHTARRRBILIENR (i)  Mr. Chen Gang resigned as independent non-executive
TEE  RZE—R"F=AtRH4% director of the Company with effect from 7 March 2016.
R o
(i) BARGEEECERZEREANRBEIL (i) Mr. Kwan Ngai Kit was appointed as an independent non-
FMITES - RZE—R"FARAR executive director of the Company with effect from 6 June
HAER - 2016.
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2017

8. EEM< (&) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

ERAFEERRNITESE NIEFH

The fees paid to executive directors and

TEELMNEOT - non-executive directors during the year were as
follows:
BHZ BE
—E-tF —ERE
+=A=+-H +ZA=+—H
LEE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
WIES Executive directors:
Lt Shum Sai Chit - —
2 Chi Bi Fen — —
EHTES Non-executive director:
mi Meng Jian 100 100
ERFATHT Tam Wai Ho, Samson JP - —
100 100

RAFEAL ERANTESE N
FRTEENHEHMMS(ZF
—NEF ) -

RAFEER - WEERFT LM

BEXFABRETMMNE 2 ZHE
(ZF—RF 8&) -
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during the year (2016: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2016: Nil).
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

9. IEESHEER 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
WIERNATES AL RS HEERN Details of the remuneration for the five highest paid
HEFBMT : employees who are not a director of the Company are

as follows:

Bz BE

—EB—+F —ERE

+=A=+—-B +=ZR=+—H

LEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

THET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

5o  2MEREDNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,361 5177

RIRETEIHR Pension scheme contributions 206 203

5,567 5,380
HEMER A TERE 2 IEEE RIETH The number of non-director and non-chief executive
BHEESHEE Z AT : highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within

the following bands is as follows:
EEAH
Number of employees

S BZE

—B-iF ZE-RE

+=ZA=+—-B +ZHA=+—H

HFE EFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

£ %1,000,0008 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 8

1,000,001 B TE HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
1,500,000 37T 2 2
5 5
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BHE—

10.

T—+F+ = A=+—H |FFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

FrEHZH 10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE

RiRa BaE & EM 2 EBRARATE
S GEA) B PRI TR S BaR s

comprehensive income represents:

The amount of income tax expense charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

—E—+tHF —E—RF

2017 2016

FTHET FET

HK$°000 HK$'000

(F&E:75)

(Restated)

BPEATRIA - Current tax:

— BBNEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax — —
— R EERN — PRC Enterprises Income Tax 55,752 56,866
— Hfth — Others 12 22
55,764 56,888
BRI IE (3L 33) Deferred taxation (Note 33) (461) (77)
55,303 56,811

BRARBRANEMIARA T RE XS
HHIBRRIAERR,RAERETE
%Eﬂ# S 2 RIS B BB R
BEoBBIHEER ARBEAKE

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

(BEEMXR)ETERMN X 7 SR and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e. the statutory
T tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:
BE-2-tE+ZR BE-Z-"F+ZA
=t-ALEEE =t-ALFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
TR % T %
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
BATa A Profit before tax 239,370 215,163
BAEREHE B Tax at the statutory tax rates 58,365 24.4 52,702 245
EiEEERRREE A RIENR Profits and losses attributable to
BiB joint ventures and an associate (179) (0.1) (279) (0.1)
AN WA Income not subject to tax (7,441) (3.1) (7,379) (3.4)
A % Expenses not deductible for tax 6,310 2.6 9,304 43
AEBR AR R Tax losses not recognised 3,688 15 6,308 29
BENEBA L NEER Tax losses utilised from previous
periods (5,440 (2.2) (3,845) (1.8)
BRAEEERHEAEZHETE  Taxcharge at the Group’s effective
rate 55,303 23.1 56,811 26.4
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T —+F+ = A=+—HIL¥E For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE—

10.

11.

12.

FreBi (%)

BENERNIREBEE_T—tF
&_ > /\i‘f'_ﬂf‘k HiE
FRZMMFAERTENZ 16.5%
TE c AREE BN EE £ ER
Faf  MEBEEZT—tF+=
R=+—BItFEHBAXNEM
MIB(ZZ—RF : THL) °

PRCEMBROEEEZT
—+tER_ZT—XR"E+=A
=+t BIFE A ER S
R2Z25%:tE o

iz 5

EEETEERBE_T—tFh=
T-RE+ - A=+—BLEFEKK
EAIRLE -

NAEBERESTE ARG

ERERBFREARRQ B T BRE
ﬁé%%ﬁ/\ﬁéﬁﬁrﬁiﬁﬁu168,320,000
B IL(Z T — N F(& &:m A )
137,061,000/ 7T ) & F A & 8 ik
hn $§$t’3§5{6,18o,837,382ﬂx(_ =
/\E(ﬂiﬁu) 6,144,310,038 %)
cHE—T-—RNF+_A=1+—
mﬁrz SRR N B E ER
B O KBTS 2 oK F EE
ﬁﬁ?é‘ﬁz3,269,919,980Hxﬁ§193)5’$%
AR HAR A BRI TESN ©

BRRENAIBRRESHERERR
MEARMESZE BMBE_T—LF
TZA=T—RIEFEZEREER
MEGRERRBNIER - REBE_Z
—RNFE+ZA=1T— EUJ:@J* RE
B E BT B R

10.

11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016. No tax is payable for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$Nil) since
there was no assessable profit generated in Hong

Kong.

The PRC Enterprise income Tax is calculated at
25% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
the PRC for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors do not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPAN

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company of HK$168,320,000 (2016
(restated): HK$137,061,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 6,180,837,382 (2016
(restated): 6,144,310,038) during the year. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares for the year ended
31 December 2016 is adjusted as if the 3,269,919,980
shares issued for the acquisition of Fullocean Group
under common control had been outstanding throughout
the entire reporting period.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 was the same as the basic earnings
per share as the convertible bonds outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share.
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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13. 9% - MERKRE 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HELH ERE
RET  EEIR AEhEEE RkE  BEREE IARIE HE T
Leasehold ~ Construction Furniture,
[and and in Leasehold fixturesand  Plant and Tooling Motor
buildings ~ progress improvements equipment  machinery  and moulds vehicles Total
THn T T T TEn T T#n TEn
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000
ir Cost:
WoF-7E-F-RB As at 1 January 2016 250478 = 2202 77408 170576 128,699 0037 665400
SNRRRAR B T2 Effect of merger of entiy under
common control uier 73038 = 818 197497 — 118 1023953
W=F-7E-f-A(HE]) As at 1 January 2016 (restated) B35 730328 20202 7826 368073 128,699 10185 1689353
FE Additons 2486 58,765 i 374 2553 556 1565 87,365
g2 Transfer 672 (27813) = 801 26340 = = =
il Disposal = = = = = — (1,827) (1.827)
EAE| Exchange realignment (22708)  (51,19) (1,000) (2146) (2730 (2215) (456)  (107021)
R F-AET-A=1-AR s at 31 December 2016 and
5-t5-A-R 1 January 2017 BB 710081 19268 % 390664 127,040 0467 1667870
hE Additons B 26491 = 3972 2046 1418 59 210763
i Transfer 215831 (392,439 = = 376,602 = = =
i Disposal (2,009) = (352) (2459) (3289) (1,169) (61) (9332)
| Exchange realignment 225 41,552 1,068 2117 1745 1977 41 122,09
RZZ-tETZAZ1-H As at 31 December 2017 580309 421,691 19,984 80885 808,774 129,267 1036 2,051,39
ZiffiE: Accumulated depreciation;
R-2-7%-A-A A at 1 January 2016 (38.306) = (19018)  (78211)  (67.1%)  (127,160) (T081)  (3516%)
ANTARE BE TR Effect of merger of entiy
under common control (1513) - - (685) (29,093) - (52) (37.813)
W=B-E-R-A(HE]) As at 1 January 2016 (restatec) (45,819) = (19018)  (738%)  (116.229) (127 160) (7583)  (369.705)
RERENE Depreciation provided during the year —~ (11,06) = (737) (1080)  (23370) (1,269) (80)  (3834)
{h& Disposal = = = = = = 1768 1768
ERET Exchange realignment 3,115 - 982 1885 9,071 2,184 219 17516
RE-nE+-A=-BR As at 31 Decerber 2016 and
5-t5-A-R 1 January 2017 (53740) = (18773)  (73091)  (130526)  (126,259) (6376)  (408767)
KERiRNE Depreciation provided during the year —~ (14,812) = (254) (3561)  (21,985) (1,086) (934 (42652
ik Disposal 04 = 32 2459 3,263 1168 0 75%
EHES] Exchange realignment (4,080) = (1,059) (1,807) (9,769) (1,959) (210)  (18883)
RZZ-tETZAZ1-H As at 31 December 2017 (T2429) - (19734) (760200 (150,998)  (128,136) (7460)  (462776)
BaE: Carrying amount;
H-8-tE+-A=1-R As at 31 December 2017 507971 421,691 250 4,865 £49,776 1,131 20% 1588620
RZZ-NETR=1-H As at 31 December 2016 280,355 710,081 495 4,164 260,13 781 3000 1259103
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13. 9% - BERREB(E) 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
BT Note:
() AEBMZHAS+HHREFTRBEEER Y (i) The carrying amount of the Group's leasehold land and
BEEmEAFIT buildings at the end of the reporting periods are analysed as
follows:
—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(&%)
(Restated)
REBZ R FHREL Medium term leases in Hong Kong 6,684 6,965
R B A2 R FHEL Medium term leases in Mainland China 501,287 273,391
507,971 280,356
(ii) ﬁﬁ‘i§—t$+:ﬁ =t—8" ﬁj‘%@ (i) As at 31 December 2017, buildings of the Group with a net
EE@)?TE%’U140,401,0003%EZ$§$(: carrying amount of approximately HK$140,401,000 (2016:
;E_//_\i : 147,60(2,0007%_75)!3?&1{5?? HK$147,600,000) was pledged to secure banking facilities
NEBSAEBRRER 2 RITEER (M granted to the Group (note 27).
27) °
(i) R=F-—tF+-A=+ — A (i) As at 31 December 2017, interest expenses of approximately
%\’97,745,0(\)077’% (= =T A F HK$7,745,000 (2016: HK$9,083,000) was capitalized and
9/,(383,000;%75)E’\J*'L%Eﬁia'ﬁzwt ' included in construction-in-progress. An analysis of construction-
Wt \VERTR - ERITRESHMAT - in-progress is as follows:
—EB—tF —T—REF
2017 2016
FHER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
(#=%1)
(Restated)
HE T REF Leasehold land and buildings 166,237 154,525
B85 R 2R Plant and machinery 255,454 555,556
421,691 710,081
(ivy RZE—+tFE+A=+—H &% (iv) As at 31 December 2017, certain buildings of the Group with
METURPEANEEFOREE carrying amount of approximately HK$109,755,000 situated
#) %3 109,755,000 JT(= F — N F in mainland China (2016: HK$104,703,000) was in process of
104,703,000 7T ) ) IERRFE I ERERS © obtaining building ownership certificates.
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14, EfF L HERE 14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
THER
HK$’000
B Cost:
RZZT—RE—H—H As at 1 January 2016 55,408
BRI HERIEH BB T E Effect of merger of entity under common control 34,083
MRZTE—RFE—-HA—-B(&EF|) Asat1January 2016 (restated) 89,491
[ H &7 Exchange realignment (4,933)
E’\\ ? NF+-A=+—BK Asat 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017
—+&—H—H 84,558
tﬁ% Disposal (302)
fEH &5 Exchange realignment 5,213
R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2017 89,469
Hot#ss - Accumulated amortisation:
R_E—RE—H—H As at 1 January 2016 8,567
EHZHERTH EB TR Effect of merger of entity under common control 4,778
MRZTE—RF—-HA—-HB(KE%) Asat1January 2016 (restated) 13,345
RN [ 8 5 Amortisation for the year 1,770
M H &7 Exchange realignment (451)
ﬁé:? NE+-—A=1+—HBM& Asat31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017
—T—+F—H—H 14,664
E’\\$¢J§T§Eiﬁ Amortisation for the year 1,816
= Disposal (60)
[EH B Exchange realignment 608
R=B—+tH+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2017 17,028
FREIE : Carrying amount:
R=-Z—tF+=-A=+—8 As at 31 December 2017 72,441
RZZ2—XR"F+=-_A=+—H As at 31 December 2016 69,894

122 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017



MBWMRMEE ()

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

14. AN T BEREE) 14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
(continued)

—E—+tF —=F—R

2017 2016
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(5 E5)
(Restated)
BIHAER 1D Current portion 1,876 1,750
FEBNEAER 1D Non-current portion 70,565 68,144
72,441 69,894
R—_EBE—+tEFE+_A=+—8" As at 31 December 2017, prepaid land lease payments of
#728,015,000/ ;L(Z & — N F ¢ approximately HK$28,015,000 (2016: HK$26,676,000 have

26,676,000 0 ) (IFE R E =0 been pledged to secure bank borrowings (note 27).
HEEER - AEERITER(H T
27) °

HE AR EIIRLES - LR E The leasehold lands are held under medium term leases and
A i o are situated in Mainland China.
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15. B & & 15.INTANGIBLE ASSETS
EER A =55 -y
Deferred
development
cost Patent Total
THET TET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B Cost:
RZT—R"F—HA—H" As at 1 January 2016,
ZE—X"F+ZA=+—H8 31 December 2016 and
E_ZE—tF—-A—H 1 January 2017 41,068 — 41,068
B 7 s S Transfer from payment of
acquisition of patents — 50,049 50,049
b 5% B 5 Exchange alignment — 3,793 3,793
RZZE—tHF+=ZH=+—H As at 31 December 2017 41,068 53,842 94,910
Rt . Accumulated amortisation:
RZE—R"F—H—H As at 1 January 2016 40,312 — 40,312
ANF EH5H Amortisation for the year 397 — 397
REERE Impairment for the year 359 — 359
R-ZT—R"F+-A=1+—H As at31 December 2016
N—F—+F—H—H and 1 January 2017 41,068 — 41,068
REFEH Amortisation for the year — 3,258 3,258
bE 5 & 51 Exchange alignment — 121 121
R-ZE—t&+=-HA=1+—H As at 31 December 2017 41,068 3,379 44,447
IREE : Carrying amount:
RZZE—tHF+=-H=+—H As at 31 December 2017 — 50,463 50,463

NRZZE—XNE+=-F=+—H As at 31 December 2016 — — —

B 5 Note:

REBEE—T—+F+_A=+—HLEFE " K During the year ended 31 December 2017, Baishan Tianan, a
ARIZEWMBRTBLRRAPERERES wholly-own subsidiary of the Company, acquired 12 patents from
FEFALEMFTAEE 12IHER - HF1018H the developer Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry, Chinese
PR EEM - EtrAEEEEM - PRES Academy of Sciences, of which 10 patents was registered in the PRC
SRR T HEE SR EERAERN - %% and the remaining was registered in the United States of America,
BFEFNHARBIFE17TENE - ZEF in respect of the production and development technologies of
BHE_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HLEFENZE magnesium alloys, especially rare earth magnesium alloys. The ranger
FIU AT SR o of the terms of those patents are from 9 years to 17 years. The patent

was transferred from payment of acquisition of patents during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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16. PRIEHE 16. MINING RIGHTS
TET
HK$°000

59 Cost:
RZZE—XR"F—H—H As at 1 January 2016 —
BRI HERIEH BB FE Effect of merger of entity under common control 59,050
R-ZE—RF—A—HUEEY]) Asat 1 January 2016 (restated) 59,050
E 4 E Y Exchange alignment (4,017)
RZZE—RF+-A=+—HBK Asat31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

—T—t£—A—H =0
I 5 &5 Exchange alignment 4,171
R-ZB—+tH+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2017 59,204
Rty - Accumulated amortisation:
RZZE—R"F—H—H As at 1 January 2016 —
EHZERIEH BB FE Effect of merger of entity under common control 5,304
RZZE—RF—A—HUEEY]) Asat 1 January 2016 (restated) 5,304
7N S 5 5 Amortisation for the year 1,684
M H B Exchange realignment (442)
—E—XFt-A=t-H8kK 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017

—T—t£—A—H S
PN g Amortisation for the year 1,666
I 5 &5 Exchange realignment 558
R-ZB—+tH+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2017 8,770
ARMEIE : Carrying amount:
R=ZF—t&+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2017 50,434
R_ZE—X"F+=-A=+—8H As at 31 December 2016 48,487

L TR B EARE B LTS
BRI - URA R ENES T

PABESH -

The balance represents mining rights of the dolomite mine
located in Baishan City of Jilin Province, the PRC, which is

amortised by the production quantity over the ore reserve.
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2017

17. REERFZKRE

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

—E—+tF —=F—

2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B EEFE Share of net assets 5,910 4,823
W Goodwill on acquisition 6,680 6,680
12,590 11,503
JEW—MAE AR ZHZIE  Amounts due from a joint venture 580 539
B ORE (Y EE (i) Less: Impairment (note (iii)) (6,680) (6,680)
6,490 5,362

JEW—MAE AR ZHIE  Amount due from a joint venture — current
— e 844 133

Bt 3 - Note:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

R —HEERAZHREBELEREREE
REZHZER  REEA IR
SEREHRER T —EAREER - BTR
RAMBARRARAIBIERE o

FEU — A & A F 2 FKIB 844,000/8 T
(ZZ—7X% : 133,0008 T) HBER
AEERSHEER @ BEEHE  2EK
EEF B -

ERBEFER —HAERRZRER
R F (6,680,000 7T - WIIESES
K2E-—HaERAZEBRE(BKR
BEZEEERE) RN —AERAT
ZREREER  RREHETRER—
BoGATYE - BE—ZE—FR-F
—RET A=t -BHITFELEE—
WETHRRE °

(i)

(i)

(i)
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The amounts due from a joint venture included in investments in
joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and are not repayable
within twelve months from the end of the reporting period and
are therefore shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position as non-current.

The amounts due from a joint venture of HK$844,000 (2016:
HK$133,000) included in the Group’s current assets, are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.

Impairment of HK$6,680,000 was recognised for investment in a
joint venture in prior years because the directors have reviewed
the carrying amount of the investment in that joint venture
with reference to its business performances prepared by the
investee’s management, and considered that only a portion of
the amount could be recoverable. No further impairment was
provided during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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17. REERAZRE(E)

Y —FRl& & A RIFRIERRE R —
MAEARZREANEREZEDH
o

17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of an
amount due from a joint venture and an investment in a
joint venture are as follows:

BZ Bz
—g-tf I RF
+=ZA=+—-B +tZHA=t+—H
L IR
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
TER TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
REA] At the beginning of year 6,680 6,680
REEEER Impairment loss recognised - —
REXR At the end of year 6,680 6,680
REFBFTELEQNRIZFHBHOT : Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures are as
follows:
Bolt
Percentage of
i mBA \ -
£ Z#fF  SMREHLE  FEERz RRE 2R TEEHR
Particulars Place of
of registered registration ~ Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital held  and business interest power sharing activities
ERTRERRERRAA(ERANE]) AKE P 19.78 20 1978 RELHESTER
Chongaing New Standard 5,401,550 The PRC L)
Medical Equipment Co., Ltd RMB5,401,550 Manufacture
and trading of
electronic medical
appliances
RS HEERAR AR#15,0007C ik 50 50 50 BLHEETEM
RMB15,000 The PRC Online trading of

A EHEESBERRNWRERARREE
A -

electronic products

The above investments in joint ventures are indirectly
held by the Company.
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17. REERARIZRE(E) 17.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
TRINTAEEERNTEBEREED The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
BERAZMIEERRAE - information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not

individually material:

—g—tF —FTAF

2017 2016
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
KFEERGEAERNTEF  Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the
year 1,087 1,695
KEERIGAEARIEME Share of the joint ventures’ total
WA %z comprehensive income for the year 1,087 1,695
xR B A Dividend received — 585
REBRAEEBERARKREZ  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
FREAAE investments in the joint ventures 5,910 4,823
18. R—EHE AR ZRE 18.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
—E-tF ZZT—RF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
e EE A Share of net assets 18 17
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18. & AR ZRE(E) 18.INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
RN D= =3 (I Particulars of the associate are as follows:
P AEBEMN
R A Ei11954 FERERR
£8 ZFE £l RRAEZAINE FEXK
Percentage
of ownership
interest
and voting
Particulars Place of power
of registered registration attributable Principal
Name capital held  and business to the Group activities
EMPEEFREBRAR AR 3,000,000 7T hE 30 EEXHB
RMB3,000,000 The PRC Dormant
AEBHE 2HE R RESIERA The Group's shareholdings in the associate comprise
NE—2EBEWBRARFHAE 2 IR equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of
v the Company.
TRINRAEBETBEREE S The following table illustrates the financial information of
NAEIZ B ERBE the Group’s associate that is not material:

—E—+F —E—RF

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REFEEIGHEE QT Share of the associate’s profit/(loss) for
wAL(B18) the year 1 (1)
AEEREEBZE/ARIEME Share of the associate’s total
WA (E18) 4858 comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1 (1)
REBER—EHE QR Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
wREZRAEBE investment in an associate 18 17
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19. A HHERE 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—E—+tF —E—RHF
2017 2016
FExT FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000

RBEE Non-current assets
JE F AR RERE - AKX Unlisted equity investments, at cost 32,680 32,680
B ORE (FEEE () Less: Impairment (note (i)) (29,680) (25,840)
3,000 6,840

REEE Current assets

JE ETHERERE - IR2AF{E Unlisted debt investments, at fair value — 22 245

MEEE Note:

20.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

HREEXRBXAE REREAE
32,680,000 T (BRI E B E AT ) (=
T — N4 1 32,680,000 7T ) 2 3E LT
[i% # 5% & % 52 0R 18 29,680,000 7 T (=
T —754F : 25,840,000/ 7T) °

bt B @A I R E s R AR
B EEEER/AHEERE -

R-E—+F+_A=+—H" kL™
BIERERNAEQAFELGESE 2=
BEEERNKEE FAREERAEAFET
BE ] 52 b 18 & T AR AR = RUE SIME ©
ZEFLMEBREEREZE=_Z—+t
E+-A=+—RItEEHHEE -

RERE

BEMEBMRE BReFHL
T BB BT BRI S R REER

20.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Impairment of HK$29,680,000 (2016: HK$25,840,000) was
recognised for unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of HK$32,680,000 (before deducting the impairment loss)
(2016: HK$32,680,000) due to the non-performance of these
investments.

The above investments consist of investments in unlisted equity
securities and debt investments which were designated as
available-for-sale investments.

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted equity investments were
stated at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates was so significant that the directors were of
the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
unlisted debt investments was disposed during the year ended
31 December 2017.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

None of the assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets relate to deposits for which there was
no recent history of default.
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21. 7E 21.INVENTORIES
—E—+tF —E—RHF
2017 2016
FExT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
(=)
(Restated)
R4 Raw materials 67,261 68,273
ER Work in progress 10,753 14,459
IR Finished goods 73,927 58,110
151,941 140,842
2. ERESRAKREWERE 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

—EB—tF T RF
2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&=E:5)
(Restated)
JEUE B BRI Trade receivables 306,334 227,553
VEREREL Provision for impairment (17,483) (17,053)
288,851 210,500
JEW IR Bills receivables 8,137 —
296,988 210,500

Bt - Note:

(i)

(if)

AEEHEETFZESETEUREER
EIT R —MTEBBRI8B0K - BF
EREERSRHEEE - AEEKKER
& 22 ) A {8 -] B SR T8 0 5 Bk 88 L B B
ERE - s REEECHEXAHE
o B EXATHL  IIZANEEZEK
BRI RBEDHZERE MW E
BANEESETRR - ANEELEEE
B E ZEREHRIFTEEMERRE
EBEIRFHRE - BUE 5 RN

B o
o

R-T—+F+-A=+—8 EKZE
5 498,137,000 7% T A5 R 3R 45 R R £ <
EARNEE - FTERKEEHIUAARE
FT1E °

(i)

(if)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally not over 180 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables related to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are interest-free.

As at 31 December 2017, bills receivable of approximately
HK$8,137,000 will be matured within six months after the end of
the reporting period. All the bills receivables are dominated in
RMB.
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22. EWEZIRFREKREZIE(E)

K& RRIZER B DNEKE
SRR NGBS < R DT T A

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date

-~ and net of provisions, is as follows:
—E—tF =X

2017 2016
FTHERT FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
(#&E51)
(Restated)
LR 60K Within 60 days 188,588 157,813
612 90K 61 to 90 days 46,416 46,768
#8318 90 X Over 90 days 53,847 5,919
288,851 210,500

RN E ZRFORERE 2 ZEHIT -

receivables are as follows:

The movements in the provisions for impairment of trade

Bz Bz

—E-tF —FRF

+=A=+—-B +ZA=+—H

tFE HFEE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

TERT FAEL

HK$°000 HK$'000

REA] At the beginning of year 17,053 16,785
REEEER Impairment losses recognised 532 784
REEERD Impairment losses reversed (102) (279)
EMERET AR 2 BRFR Amounts written off as uncollectible — (237)
RER At the end of year 17,483 17,053

FHEWE ZERFBMERREERE
18 5l 4 6k 18 FE W B 5 BR 5K 2 B

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade

17,483,000 T(= T — X F:
17,053,000 7T ) o {IE Bl £ 5k (8 FE Uk
BORREXFBRNERTIEES
7 - B SR UNE IR AT YL(E o

receivables of HK$17,483,000 (2016: HK$17,053,000).
The individually impaired trade receivables relate
to customers that were in default or delinquency in
payments and the receivables are not expected to be
recovered.
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22. EREZRRREWRE(E) 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

I B 5l Sk KRR AR TIRE 2 B UK

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be

BHRARREOMAT

impaired is as follows:

—E—+tF —E—RHF

2017 2016

THERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

(&E5)

(Restated)

RiBEATRERVE Neither past due nor impaired 273,499 206,515
BE—EMmEA 1 to 2 months past due 11,364 2,880
BEARE = E A 2 to 3 months past due 2,654 567
B AR A = (& A Over 3 months past due 1,334 538
288,851 210,500

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

KB M TN E R B 2 B R BN TR
HAYY #E3E R ALER VAL D B ©

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,

B8 BB ERE < FE R BN A&
BZELRFNELRR - RIEE
sk - ARREERR  ANEE

BEEWEERNNE  WRRERIA] the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
28RO - WAL S AR E LR provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
B o balances as there has not been a significant change in

credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

23. FAFIE - IREREMEWT 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
pi| RECEIVABLES
—E2—tF —Z=—X

2017 2016

TExT FHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

(&E5)

(Restated)

AT RIR Prepayments 51,041 64,772

e Deposits 70,821 3,978

H th & W IR Other receivables 29,042 27,912

BB Impairment (22,072) (22,072)

128,832 74,590

R MEBRHEONE - RERFBER

b U KIA B

None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. The

provision for impairment relates to other receivables.
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23.FEFRIE - HE R HEMEWR 23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

H(%E)

LA R © e R EAmEKGIA
ZIREBE R 22,072,000 (=
T — N4 122,072,000/ 7T ) 7 B
15 o & BI A B (B LA e U SR IR ER E At
FEWGRIBHE R BB IBE B - TR
£ 0] U B 1kt 2 P GRIE 2 — BB s N
AT ULl it R U o AEE I &
N EEHRFETANERRIEMEER
IRFHREE - HepH UK R 1B
BRI R (B K JB A AL AR 3T BRI
RECEk 2 @I AL °

BNFRIA - e ME IR 2R
BEREZEEHMT

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
provisions of HK$22,072,000 (2016: HK$22,072,000).
The individually impaired other receivables relate to
other receivables that were in default or delinquency in
payments and only a portion or none of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over this
balance. The remaining balance of other receivables
is neither past due nor impaired and relates to a large
number of independent parties for whom there was no
recent history of default.

The movements in the provision for impairment of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are as
follows:

Bz BZE

- Sl of ;3 ZE-RF

+=ZA=t—-B TZA=+—H

LEE HFEE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

THET TAT

HK$°000 HK$'000

REA] At the beginning of year 22,072 27,567
REEERD Impairment losses reversed — (5,495)
RER At the end of year 22,072 22,072
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2. HERREEEEHERSEA

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RITER PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
—E—+F ZT-RF
2017 2016
FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
(&E=5)
(Restated)
Be MIRTTHE R Cash and bank balances 172,854 142,574
BITER Bank deposits 33,981 93,461
206,835 236,035
" B2 Less: Pledged deposits for
B ESR (M 27) borrowings (note 27) (33,981) (53,461)
RekReFEEE Cash and cash equivalents 172,854 182,574
BHERRITER Pledged bank deposits:
mENER D Current portion 7,897 21,874
FEm BN Non-current portion 26,084 31,587
33,981 53,461

RIFEHR  AEEUARESEZ
RekREEEHEE AR EIFR
1TTE R4 A 158,254,000/8 L (=&
— N4 127,061,000/ 7T) - AR
BASEREBREMER - A - 1B
BHRREINEERKHIRERE  SER
NEERBT  AEEEEEBER
AN EESEBHRITEAREY
MAEEMER -

RITRE HIRBRTE ARITHERA
RZFHHNERIAE - RIAREH
BIRSIR S FBK - MHE I 2 HARR
A=EA  WRE A\ ZEHAE TR
MDA B o RITHFR MBI
TFRR A RIFER R BB R
RRCEREVIRTT o

RZZTE—+EFE+=-A=+—0" 2K
R TIF X #733,981,000 8 T ( ==
— 7N : 53,461,000 7T ) BB T
BT - LAEBER(KIE27) -

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$158,254,000 (2016: HK$127,061,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2017, pledged bank deposit of
approximately HK$33,981,000 (2016: HK$53,461,000)
was pledged to bank for secured of borrowings (Note
27).
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25. ETE B RN 25. TRADE PAYABLES
R EHRIZEZHBAZ| DR ENE An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end
AR BRI DT TR of the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is
as follows:

—E—+tHF ZE-RF

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

($&E5)

(Restated)

LR60K Within 60 days 50,881 36,528

612 90K 61 to 90 days 7,818 2,986

B8 90 K Over 90 days 54,817 10,182

113,516 49,696
FENE SRR TEFE  £E88mE The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
R THB 180K ° normally settled within 180-day terms.
26. HtENRIERESER 26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—E-tF —TRF
2017 2016
FET FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
(#eEE%)
(Restated)

FEETE R (i) Accruals (i) 25,332 20,330

A JE 5 FRIE (i) Other payable (ii) 59,272 45157

2e Deposit 10,745 11,339

95,349 76,826

EAAERLEMENTIBARENE Accruals and other payables are interest-free and

BEREE o repayable on demand.

MIEE - Note:

(i) RZZE—+tF+-_A=+—H"E (i) As at 31 December 2017, the accrual expenses mainly
AR EFEARAEFEREIRT represents accrual salary and staff benefit of approximately
#910,523,000% (= T — ;X F: HK$10,523,000 (2016: HK$8,289,000) and accured professional
8,289,000 L ) N EE B EB A Y fee of approximately HK$2,186,000.

2,186,000 & 7T

(ii) E/\f?ftfi—i— B=+—8" ' H4t (i) As at 31 December 2017, the other payable was mainly

FE it % 151;@%&@1&5& H% represents outstanding amount of construction-in-progress of

#2 #4913,883,000/& J7L(— & — ;X F

approximately HK$13,883,000 (2016: HK$12,476,000).
12,476,000 7T ) °
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27. B 27. BORROWINGS
—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FEx FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEEE (1) & Bank borrowings (note (i) & (ii)) 157,788 166,426
FLAth £8 3R (B (i )) Other borrowings (note (iii)) 304,294 189,027
462,082 355,453
LN Borrowings:
—FANHIRERKER Within one year or on demand 83,815 81,642
—F AL EHEBERF More than one year but not exceeding
five years 371,387 246,228
AFLE More than five years 6,880 27,583
462,082 355,453
B ORBEEM TSR Less: Amounts shown under current
liabilities (83,815) (81,642)
ERBBEMTERE Amounts shown under non-current
liabilities 378,267 273,811
B - Borrowings:
BEA Secured 306,768 355,453
AR Unsecured 155,314 —
462,082 355,453
BHRATINEEE Borrowings were denominated in the following
currencies:
—EB—tF T RF
2017 2016
FET FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
AR RMB 136,401 145,141
BT HK$ 15,000 21,285
= Uss$ 310,681 189,027
462,082 355,458
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27. B (E)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

R-ZZE—+E+=-_A=+—8" &77T
f& 21,387,000 (= T — X F:
21,285,000 70 ) A AL E L i RiEF
{EIRR - £%5849 /56,684,000 (==
—7N%F 1 6,965,000 7T) °

AR E 4 136,401,000 T( ZF—7<
& : 145,141,000/ L) B — R B & M
BRARMARERAREENEFTRY
¥ B KEREL 133,717,000 (=
T — X5 ¢ 140,635,000 7T ) LA K FE 1+t
+ b 7 & 718 49 28,015,000 7T (= &
— N4 1 26,676,000 7 7T ) {EHELR ©

BREBEARGT —REENBAGTHEBEER S
BMAR(EEERAR DR T —MmMF
AA=THIIVUNERGZ  BERSR
A BB [ % M B A AR 25,000,000
ELER - ZMER T —RF+=
BtB&ETREY  EEERA
25,000,000 3 Jt # A1 & 27,000,000 3%
=

ZERSFIRMBERITRIZEREMN3.5%
TR DESBRER MEAE A
BRAEHE -

Bt ARABENE XD A
148,980,000/ (= & — X F:
189,027,000 7T) » M (i) 42 RS 1R 4
A BIYER ¢ K (i) £ B Alpha Sino
International Limited ([Alpha Sino])
HA LB RGO B (i) RTFE
SR #733,981,0007% jT(= T — /X F -
53,461,000 %70 ) fEHE 4 o

N—_E—+E+=-_F=+—H &&
%% 17 $4 819,926,000 jT(HH & R
155,314,000 70 ) KIEH ARSI S -
ZEHREFNRTI%E  BEEME
—R e BRERFER - ZESHEH
AAE-_Z-_ZTFN\A+—H -BEFER
FEEEFET7.05% °

RARFBITRFASERNRITEEIR
#H R B & R £ %8 & 24,000,000 T
— T4 : 24,000,000/87T) °

R-_ZT—+tFE+_A=+—H EB17HE
AREAE RO MEBERFER5.41%
(ZE—RF 1 4.97%)

27.BO
Note:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)
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RROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowing of HK$21,387,000
(2016: HK$21,285,000) were secured by land and building of
the Group amounting to approximately HK$6,684,000 (2016:
HK$6,965,000)

Secured borrowing of approximately HK$136,401,000 (2016:
HK$145,141,000) were guaranteed by the corporate guarantee
of a fellow subsidiary and pledged building and property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$133,717,000
(2016: HK$140,635,000) and prepaid land lease payments of
approximately HK$28,015,000 (2016: HK$26,676,000).

Pursuant to a loan agreement entered into by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and International Finance
Corporation (“IFC”) on 30 May 2014, IFC had granted a loan of
US$25,000,000 to the subsidiary. The agreement was amended
and restated on 7 December 2015 with increase in the loan
granted from US$25,000,000 to US$27,000,000.

The loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% per annum and the
amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreement.

The loan granted by IFC of approximately HK$148,980,000
(2016: HK$189,027,000) was secured by (i) corporate gurantee
given by Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited; and (ii)
pledged of shares in Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited
as owned by Alpha Sino International Limited (“Alpha Sino”), the
substantial shareholder; (iii) deposit with banks of approximately
HK$33,981,000 (2016: HK$53,461,000)

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has issued bond
with the outstanding amount of US$19,926,000 (equivalent to
HK$155,314,000 for cash. The bond bear an interest of 7% per
annum payable in arrear semi-annually. The maturity date of the
bond is 11 August 2020 unless early redeemed. The effective
interest rate of the bond is 7.05% per annum.

Corporate guarantees by the Company to banks for banking
facilities granted to the Group amounting to HK$24,000,000
(2016: HK$24,000,000).

The weighted effective interest rate of bank borrowing and other
borrowing as at 31 December 2017 is 5.41% (2016: 4.97%)
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28. &1E

29.

30.

28. PROVISION

—E—tF ZZT—RF
2017 2016
FET FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
R-—ZF—+tF—H—H As at 1 January 2017 933 945
B AIE N Additional provision 303 349
RAFEANE A Amounts utilised during the year (197) (286)
BREOXBASHE Reversal of unutilized amount — (72)
M 5 &5 Exchange realignment 3 (3)

R-ZE—tF As at 31 December 2017
+—-A=+—H 1,042 933

REBERIBNEFEMAIZT S IRER
FE=FREF  REEERETHE
Y E# o RBEZBHEEIIRIES KB
EAREMRBIERREEMET - Z
E?r%ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ?ﬂﬁﬂ C WEEE
B3] o

FEf — BB 2 B IR IR R
Z R

FEA — 22 Ff B /2 A FEFE I AR 2 SRR
REEWH - REREBETEERD o
FEAY B R 2 FROR

FERACR 2 RIB R IR - 2R NHE
FR12EAREE -

29.

30.

The Group provides two to three year warranties to its
customers on certain of its electronic products, under
which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The
amount of provision for the warranties is estimated
based on sales volumes and past experience of the
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where
appropriate.

DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a

subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and has
no fixed terms of repayment.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to shareholders are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are not repayable within 12 months.
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31.

32.

IR ER A 31. DEFERRED REVENUE
—E—+tHF —E—RF
2017 2016
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
& = AR 2 BT 8 3K Government grants received related
to assets 73,585 66,176

RIEETBEE ZER  AIUHRR
CEBEBEARARN _T——F
EE M BRI — e o RIBEZ
et BEMWERARERALTRER
TEBEREARQRARETEE Y
(B AR EELEEMKEES
W - BB NREBHERE °

BE-_Z—+H+-A=+—8ItFE
[ - ANEEUWEES{» & Bh 2,307,000
&t (e & R A B 2,000,000t )
(= Z — X £ : 3,507,000 7T(48
BN A R#%3,00000075T)) IR
HMRAFRBREEL(ZZE—X
& : 2,081,000 T(HHE R AR
1,780,0007T)) °

PRI S R MR B B - HIIEHE
RAEITU A R AR 85
% BB T E AR M ENA
HR R -

i

R ES

RZE—tF+—A=+H" A
WEXFEEREN—ZFD AR
AIBREEEREERARTEER
% )~ Sure Sino Global Limited
([Sure Sinol) * 43R5 Y & B
BRARRANRARGINLZ EE i
BITRBF4%TE - ABEFHE
2 < - N 4858 % 420,000,000 7%
T2 AR ES o

32.

In order to encourage the development of magnesium
industry, Baishan City Tianan Magnesium Resources
Co., Limited entered into an agreement with the local
government in 2012. Pursuant to the agreement, the
local government agree to provide financial assistance
(the “Assistance”) to Baishan City Tianan Magnesium
Resources Company Limited to improve their production
technology and enhance the capacity of the property,
plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has received part of the Assistance of HK$2,307,000
(equivalent to RMB2,000,000) (2016: HK$3,507,000
(equivalent to RMB3,000,000)) and recognised to the
other income of HK$Nil (2016: HK$2,081,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,780,000)).

The Assistance received or which becomes receivables
is initially recognised as deferred revenue and
subsequently recognised in profit or loss over the
life of a depreciable asset by way of as a reduced
depreciation charge expense.

CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 30 November 2017, as part of consideration for
the acquisition of the Fullocean Group, the Company
has issued convertible bonds which bear an interest
of 4% per annum payable in arrear semi-annually
with aggregate principal amount of HK$420,000,000
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement entered
into by Capital Idea Investments Limited (“CIIL"), Sure
Sino Global Limited (“Sure Sino”), Century Sunshine
Group Holdings Limited and the Company.
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HE—

32.

ARRES ()

RIBAEE 2 @51 R @ AHRES
RESOLHFAND - UREEEER
EaTAZTREERNIBEREHE
B Rt o fRBRBER A BIARE TS
B %53 — B A ERDE
BZARRASESTARGHE Al
B TH - BEHD I AFERARE
AR R T B 7 IRITH G T
EEUR EH@H&%%%Z’AFHEEWEEE
BY EXGEMET Bl mHRN

f—f?ﬁﬂxﬁ%‘% S | BIE AR
@ ° BRI R AR B B R A

KBGE14% o

AR E S TESFFE AR - LA
BB 040B TEIBR ARG, - B
TEHRF TBRRESFERBAAE=
& o %?‘%TEATW R fESE 2 B > AT
BERFHETT - AR BRI REBIHIEELD %
ﬂiﬁéLTﬁZT?ﬁHﬂE% o

A=+—H f

BE J‘rfﬁiﬁﬁsm 544.000 %

o

VP%

%%E’ﬁ?iﬁéﬁﬂ—fﬂﬂﬁ_ z
t¢+ﬂ_+/\EIZ

AR A BTSN R FERR ) AT A AR 55
BESBIFELT

| g Ik

32. CONVERTIBLE BOND (continued)

According to the Group’s accounting policy, the
convertible bonds are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is an equity instrument. The fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments.
The fair value assessment of the convertible bonds was
performed by an independent professional valuer. The
equity element is presented in equity under the heading
of “convertible bond equity reserve”. The effective
interest rate of the liability element on initial recognition
is 14% per annum.

The convertible bonds entitle the bondholder to convert
to shares at a conversion price of HK$0.40. The maturity
date of the Convertible Bonds is the 3 year from the
date of issue. Conversion may occur at any time before
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds. The Company
will redeem the convertible bonds if the bonds have not
been converted on maturity date.

The fair value of the Convertible Bonds is approximately
HK$310,544,000 as at 31 December 2017.

For more details of the terms of convertble bonds,
please refer to the circular dated on 26 October 2017.

The liability component of convertivble bond recognised
in the statement of consolidated financial position was
calculated as follow:

FET
HK$’'000
N-ZZE—+F+—A=+HZT Fair value of the convertible bond issued
E’J‘Hﬁﬂxﬁ% B on 30 November 2017 420,000
ez Equity component (103,650)
AZE—+F+—A=1+H¥HE Liability component on initial recognition and
R B EF D R EA AR amortised cost as 30 November 2017 316,350
AT —+HF+—HA=+HH  Amortised cost as at 30 November 2017
Eﬁﬁﬁm& 316,350
STABRABRAY Effective interest expenses charged 3,765
B4 B eE S Interest expenses paid and payable (1,431)
R=-Z—tHF+=-HA=+—H  As at 31 December 2017 318,684
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33. BB IH 33. DEFERRED TAXATION
FRREGE I BN R IER BT The components of deferred tax balances recognised in
TREREAEKE D REEEHINT the consolidated statement of financial position and the

movements during the year as follows:

Bttt
IaRES BEHE @t
Prepaid land
Convertible lease
bond payment Total

AT TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE-"F—-A—H As at 1 January 2016 — — —
BRXARAEH BB T E Effect of merger of entity under common
control — 3,405 3,405
RZEB-—ARE-A—B(FEH) As at 1 January 2016 (restated) — 3,405 3,405
TAGEBRERAMZARAR Credited to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income — (77) (77)
R Exchange realignment - (229) (229)
RZE—R"E+-A=+—-HR=-Z—+%F Asat31 December 2016 and 1 January
—A—H 2017 — 3,099 3,099
BmBRES Issuance of convertible bonds 17,102 — 17,102
SAGERERAMZERAR Credited to consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income (385) (76) (461)
& 5 &5 Exchange realignment — 232 232
R-E-t£+=-A=1+-H As at 31 December 2017 16,717 3,255 19,972
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HE—

33.

IETERIE (48 )

SERBEBRIEKRE
AREEEENBBEERY A
3,667,000 T(ZF — ~NF+=

A=+ — 8 :441,463,000/& 7T ) °

WrlEER IR HE A B BEERNA
AR AR R ER G A o REB IR AF
A It B A5 49 138,442,000 st (=

T — N 111,167,000 7T ) B B
EE - YaRARKR—Z2RAFRIKH

ARIRFERD & A o B LT E R B2 &S
B—BREEBER/EBRRTUG AT
UAHE 85 1t 25 P BB 1% B AT B R 2 0 75
B SRMEERME - WARERE
SEFRIABE

BIFFEPEMERZE - RPERH
K 2 INE R E RN EET IR
[ B BBK10% 2 EHH - RER
FER-_ZETN\F—A—BBER
WEAR—_EE+F+-_A=+—H
ZEEEZEF o fmH B At E N
REEMBRIZE SR HAIBHB
Wk ISR E A R -
MAEEME  BEAREES% - A
It AREBE B BRI 2 K
BRaIR—_EZENF—A—HUEE
&2 BT IR 2B BN E R -

RZE—+F+_A=+—H &K&E
B ERN P R R 2 KB A
A BEARRAEERARIERENA
I T 2E A 2 FE AT IR B A A R SR A1)
BEMIE - EERE WEHWNBA
Al - BERARREELQARERNRRK
RAKAIBED IR FRF o REEH
K BT EAHE B A A

BRRIRBERR2RE WARBE
FEREREZR(ZE—RF &)

AARMERRI TR EILENE
FIiSHiER -

33. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong before
Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) assessment of
approximately HK$423,667,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$441,463,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also has tax
losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$138,442,000 (2016: HK$111,167,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised
by these subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

At 31 December 2017, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding dividend taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding dividend taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries,
associate, and joint ventures established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. There
was no significant temporary difference associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate
in Mainland China at the end of the reporting period
(2016: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching

to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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34. g4 34. SHARE CAPITAL
—g-t% =T %
2017 2016
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EIE - Authorised:
10,000,000,000 (ZZ—7< 10,000,000,000 (2016: 10,000,000,000)
£ : 10,000,000,000) 8%  ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
FREEO.10/EITL
AR 1,000,000 1,000,000
ERITRAR Issued and fully paid:
6,574,390,058 (—ZE—7%  6,574,390,058 (2016: 2,874,390,058)
1 2,874,390,058) I ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
FREE10B T
LA 657,439 287,439

ARRDRTRAZ BHEHRIT *

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued

share capital is as follows:

BRT RipEE
RG#A R& BB Ay
Number Share
of shares Share premium
in issue capital account Total
T THBT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-"5-A-B- As at 1 January 2016,
- E+tZA=t-Bk 31 December 2016 and
“E—+%-f-H 1 January 2017 2,874,390,058 287,439 601,060 888,499
BOHRM (a) New issues (a) 3,700,000,000 370,000 962,000 1,332,000
R ETRE Share issue expenses — — (2,983) (2,983)
RZE—+F+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2017 6,574,390,058 657,439 1,560,077 2,217,516

BsE - Note:
(@ R=ZZ—tF+—A=+H " ERIKHE (a)
KASENRERD  ARRREES
KEBRAR(TEEKRE]) - Sure Sino
Global Limited ([Sure Sinol) * & 42
B EARNBILzEEHZE(EEE
BEEEHHDARBEEER A G (5
B51) ~ Sure Sino EBARQRFIVZAS—17D
BEEwR(HMEBEEERE]) A /BT
3,700,000,000 % & A% I 18 0.10 7% 7T &Y
TR - BRMISERBRR0.368TT ©
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On 30 November 2017, the Company issued 3,700,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at a market price of HK$0.36,
in aggregate, as consideration shares for the acquisition of
Fullocean Group, pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
(the “CIIL SPA”) entered into by Capital Idea Investments Limited
(“CIIL"), the Sure Sino Global Limited (“Sure Sino”), Century
Sunshine and the Company and another sale and purchase
agreement (the “WU SPA”) entered into by Win Union Limited
(“Win Union”), Sure Sino and the Company.
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35.

B

R-Z—+F+-HAMA - ARFK
RULER RS B ([ZFHE]) < 1B
BiZat 8l ARRIAIRHBARE T A
%&Tﬂﬂi%‘&ﬁi%Z%%EﬂE% .
AEENBERXAEAA - DHE -
DR HRER - REH JEFH ("
I %ﬁ&%i‘k%ﬁ#(FAﬁT 2
EF1) > ARBARRIRD

BRENREZZRNBETNR
JB ~ 1TE s E b 75 A 5K e A5k T
Rib - A BRI AR A 8
AR E A SRR AR AR — B e

REBEIGENATHREE ()R
175AE§H:<T’?£%I£EI,HJ%75A ¥ PR E

1E$ﬁﬁ§IJE?E$&ZH&ﬁE (i) B 4
REZBRERZAHAERS A

R RIS ARERFAIEERF
BHE R(i)VRHZHE NEEL
EETFRETETARSEOSER
FERRHE o

BER2EEANBRER L A B
ERETER RN AEEHE
2RRER - FAITEBARE

R-_ZT—+E+—_HA=+—H ' #i&E
B ER B M R ITHE -

35. SHARE OPTIONS

On 4 December 2017, a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the directors or employees of the Group
and any substantial shareholder, consultant or adviser,
distributor, contractor, supplier, service provider,
agent, customer and business partner of the Group
(the “Eligible Participant”) to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

Options may be granted on such terms and conditions
in relation to their vesting, exercise or otherwise as
the directors may determine in its absolute discretion,
provided that such terms and conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms conditions of the
Scheme.

The subscription price is not less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on Main Boards stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of offer of the option; (ii) the average prices of the
shares on Main Board as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;
and (iii) the nominal value of the shares. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the options in cash.

The share options are exercisable only if the Eligible
Participants remain in the service of the Group or
substantial shareholder from the grant date of the share
options up to the designated exercise date.

No share options have been granted or outstanding as
at 31 December 2017.
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BHE—

36.

37.

(GRS

AEBRAEZMBERE L HEE
BMEEH 2 NMBRRELIR

Z A RREBDRR -

R-ZZF—tHF+-A=+—HB AR
AW ER B R RDERIER]) IR R

HY R 7 IR s o LS -

/NGRSl

Y [BERA F£491,560,077,000 7T A]

L‘ALA%&EZIHXET/)E?‘

AEB 2Rl RERE-NNL=F
ARRBZ D EHRIFTETZARE
ElmEE B AR RN ZHE -

R F R AT

HECZ5 -

p UNGIL S

BREAFEH MRS 2B

BENEBLR

i‘?ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ il AR 2 AR BB

NAIRHFEGEYWOT -

36.

37.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and prior period
are presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 59 of the financial statements.

At 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution which was calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act (as amended). In addition, the Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$1,560,077,000, may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

The Group’s special reserve represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares in 1993, and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

—E—tF —E-REF
2017 2016
JEEHIM R ST B IRAER)  Percentage of equity interest held by
BRALE : non-controlling interests:
AR WG 49% 49%
BMBE BMEE 49% 49%
BZ BE
—E—tF —E-RE
+=ZA=+—-B +ZA=t+—H
tFE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
TEx FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEHIME RSN IEAEE Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to non-
wmhl/ () - controlling interests:
PAHA PARA 619 (760
BMNAE BMNAE (586) (778)
RiE B s Accumulated balances of non-controlling
RS interests at the reporting dates:
NG ] NG e (6,600) (6,732)
EMNBE BMNAE (1,231) (579)
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37.BBEK 9HE$|; i E A )
BEREHWBAR(E)

TRIR £t i B R R BB R
2 o BWEZEBAARELAFE QA

37.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts

EH R disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:
BZ-_ZFZ—tH5+=-HA=+—H Year ended 31 December 2017
IHEE
hRHE BMEBE
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$’000
H AR A Other income 3,220 1,415
> HH4asE Total expenses (1,957) (2,612)
NEEZHM,(E18) KR Profit/(loss) for the year and total
AFE 2z 2HEEEBRE comprehensive loss for the year 1,263 (1,197)
mENEE Current assets 663 639
JEMENEE Non-current assets 41,646 34,662
mEEE Current liabilities (5,042) (1,832)
JERBEE Non-current liabilities (50,736) (35,981)
s 7S (RE),~  Net cash flows (used in)/generated from
MAEEE operating activities (4,252) 356
WEEKZIRERAFRE  Net cash flows generated from investing
activities 4,427 1
BMEEBZIHERAFE  Net cash flows generated from financing
activities 2 —
RekBAeFEEAZ Net increase in cash and cash
HHNFEER equivalents 177 357

E
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7. BEEERFIEHIMER 2D 37.PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
BEMBARE) MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016

PN BNEE
FAT FET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
H A A Other income 226 282
> H4a%E Total expenses (1,777) (1,870)
AKEEZZEBEANFE 2 Loss for the year and total
THEBRRE comprehensive loss for the year (1,551) (1,588)
MEEE Current assets 464 254
IEREBEE Non-current assets 41,825 33,154
mEBERE Current liabilities (1,769) (1,143)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities (54,259) (33,447)
RS IS AEE  Net cash flows from operating activities 206 37
WEXB IS REFHE  Net cash flows used in investing activities (212) -
RekReFEEEE 2 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
&, Cr) F58 cash equivalents (6) 37
38. RAGHtEFHE 38. APPLICATION OF MERGER ACCOUNTING

HE_T—+F+-_A=+—HItHF
B ARrREZ2ENEB QG Sure
Sino Global Limited 2 & #REH
R A &) & Ming Xin Developments
Limited 3 AtE LB X EBIERE
RARZZ2ENB AR )R KFSE
EAERARZ2995% BB R L
EE e WEHE—FZHIE=FHE
BERARIMMNKFEEERAF 26
TO05%ERRERF LS —MHEEW
& o METAKE - ANEEEKEEKF
SEBZ2100% #Em - WEEHEZRE
AR T EITERR R ES
BN WESEEER_E—tF+—
A=1+H%EK - AEEERERES
SR AERMBMG 2 25T E 55 5
HEZEH THEHEREHZE]
KAGHSHTERETBRE - LR
SRE THEES - BIAR Q[ EBE
—HHRASERLE -

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiary Sure Sino Global
Limited entered into the sale and purchase agreement
with Capital Idea Investments Limited and Ming Xin
Developments Limited which are both the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Century Sunshine Group Holdings
Limited for the 99.5% effective interest in Fullocean
Limited and entered another sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, Win Union
Limited for the remaining 0.5% effective interest in
Fullocean Limited. Upon the completion of which Group
will have acquired 100% interest in the Fullocean
Group. The consideration for the acquisition is to be
satisfied by the issue of the Company’s ordinary shares
and convertible bond by the Company. The acquisition
was completed on 30 November 2017. The Group has
applied the merger accounting method in accordance
with the Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations” issued by the
HKICPA in the preparation of financial statements. The
comparative amounts have been restated accordingly
as if the business of the Company had always been
carried out by the Group.
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38. APPLICATION OF MERGER ACCOUNTING
(continued)

38. RAGHEE(E)

EReaHaridBEz—_F—tF
T A=t-HUEFEZHEABRERK
HipzmBARZZEWT

The effects of the application of merger accounting on
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2016 are as follows:

—T-RF ZT-RF
+ZA=+—H FRAH +t=A=1+—H
IEFE Bk IEFE
(RREIIER) FIBR < FHE (KE75)
For the
year ended Adjustment For the
31 December for the year ended
2016 combination 31 December
as previously  using merger 2016
reported accounting as restated
THET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
WA Revenue 363,676 759,229 1,122,905
HHE AR Cost of sales (307,214) (489,186) (796,400)
EM Gross profit 56,462 270,043 326,505
HE AR E iz - 7F58 Other income and gains, net 19,749 4,734 24,483
HERDHET N Selling and distribution expenses (21,972) (12,427) (34,399)
TERE Administrative expenses (39,948) (7,702) (47,650)
MERFAESH Research and development
expenses (20,098) — (20,098)
Hipea s it - F 5 Other operating expenses, net (25,526) — (25,526)
s E A Finance costs (1,362) (8,484) (9,846)
FE1E 5= F) R B8 Share of profits and losses of
CE-VNG Joint ventures 1,695 — 1,695
NS Associate (1) — (1)
A (&E) 5R (Loss)/Profit before tax (31,001) 246,164 215,163
PriFH 2 Income tax expense (22) (56,789) (56,811)
FE(BR) BT (Loss)/Profit for the year (31,023) 189,375 158,352
Hth2HEEE Other comprehensive loss
BEHHENHERE Other comprehensive loss to be
BamEMEE reclassified to profit or loss in
B subsequent periods:
BMERINER Exchange differences on
MEH =% translation of foreign operations (27,025) (91,785) (118,810)
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38. RAGHEE(E)

38. APPLICATION OF MERGER ACCOUNTING
(continued)

—ERE —ERF
+=ZA=+—H ERaH +t-HA=t—H
FE gatratt LFE
(RIRFETER) SRR < FHE (RE5)
For the
year ended Adjustment For the
31 December for the year ended
2016 combination 31 December
as previously  using merger 2016
reported accounting as restated
FET FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEZE(ER)/ Total comprehensive (loss)/
WA EEE income for the year (58,048) 97,590 39,542
5 EE(FE) %A (Loss)/profit for the year
attributable to:
RARIERFAA Equity holders of the Company (29,485) 166,546 137,061
FEEH RS Non-controlling interests (1,538) 22,829 21,291
(31,023) 189,375 158,352
EEEE2E(EE), . Total comprehensive (loss)/
LN LI income for the year
attributable to:
RARIERFAA Equity holders of the Company (56,998) 85,826 28,828
FEIEH RS Non-controlling interests (1,050) 11,764 10,714
(58,048) 97,590 39,542

AREEBERER
BRAEGEER
(B8 BF

EREEECE)

(Loss)/earnings per share

attributable to ordinary equity

holders of the Company
Basic and diluted (HK cents)

(1.03 cents 71l

2.23 cents 71l
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38. APPLICATION OF MERGER ACCOUNTING
(continued)

38. RAGHEE(E)

ERAHEEHGE T B RE The effect of the application of merger accounting on
=3 (I the consolidated statement of financial position are as
follows:
RZZE—RF RZZE—RF
+-A FAE6H +-A
=+—H 2IES B =+—H
(FRRE58R) 518 2 T4 EE (E=7)
As at Adjustment
31 December for the As at
2016 combination 31 December
as previously  using merger 2016
reported accounting as restated
THET FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assents
ME - BB R&E Property, plant and equipment 326,452 932,651 1,259,103
TR LA EFIE Prepaid land lease payments 42,103 26,041 68,144
RiEE Mining rights — 48,487 48 487
REEBERRIZIE Investments in joint ventures 5,362 — 5,362
R—EE AT ZIRE Investment in an associate 17 — 17
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 6,840 — 6,840
RBRE Long term deposits 372 — 372
Y B A 3R Payment for acquisition of patents — 50,049 50,049
BEERRITER Pledged bank deposits — 31,587 31,587
FERBDEELT Total non-current assets 381,146 1,088,815 1,469,961
REBEE Current assets
8 Inventories 83,826 57,016 140,842
JEWE FERANEWEE Trade and bills receivables 43,546 166,954 210,500
BN TS FIE Prepaid land lease payments 1,115 635 1,750
BRHIA - Tﬁi&ﬁ‘r@ﬁéﬂ& Prepayments, deposits and other
A receivables 19,036 55,554 74,590
fEU—RAEARIFKIE  Amount due from a joint venture 133 — 133
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 22,245 — 22,245
REBRR Tax recoverable 1,706 — 1,706
BEERRITER Pledged bank deposits — 21,874 21,874
RekReEEER Cash and cash equivalents 137,757 44,817 182,574
RBEERE Total current assets 309,364 346,850 656,214
B (BB BRAF » 2017 BFHE 151
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38. APPLICATION OF MERGER ACCOUNTING
(continued)

38. RAGHEE(E)

RZZE—RF RZZE—RF
+=A EAA B +=A
=+—H SEEH =+—H
(BR&FER) 51| 8% 2 F R (F=&E35)
As at Adjustment
31 December for the As at
2016 combination 31 December
as previously  using merger 2016
reported accounting as restated
FET FAT FETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEE Current liabilities
S E 5 ER Trade payables 48,417 1,279 49,696
HitENFZIENESER  Other payables and accruals 70,090 6,736 76,826
fEk Borrowings 21,285 60,357 81,642
] Provision 933 — 933
e —R KB A TFEEFIRR Due to a non-controlling
- O shareholder of a subsidiary 216 — 216
AN 5N Tax payable 115 6,952 7,067
REEEAE Total current liabilities 141,056 75,324 216,380
REEEFE Net current assets 168,308 271,526 439,834
EELERRBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 549,454 1,360,341 1,909,795
ERBAE Non-current liabilities
LM A Deferred revenue = 66,176 66,176
B Borrowings — 273,811 273,811
EEMIERE Deferred tax liabilities — 3,099 3,099
e IR R FKIE Amounts due to shareholders 121,000 286,774 407,774
FnBEEHEEE Total non-current liabilities 121,000 629,860 750,860
EEFE Net assets 428,454 730,481 1,158,935
X Equity
RATEE A Equity attributable to owners of
ElaEs the Company
ERITAIRA Issued capital 287,439 — 287,439
] Reserves 148,328 580,309 728,637
435,767 580,309 1,016,076
FER B IERE2S Non-controlling interests (7,313) 150,172 142,859
RSB Total equity 428,454 730,481 1,158,935
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38. APPLICATION OF MERGER ACCOUNTING
(continued)

38. RAGHEE(E)

ERAHETZHBE_T—tF+=
A=+ RLFEZHEARENRERZ

The effects of the application of merger accounting on
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year

BT - ended 31 December 2016 are summarised below:
—T-RF —E-RF
+-A=+—H HAeH +ZA=+—AH
EFE gEAD LEE
(RIREDER) 518 2 FHEE (& &E7)
For the
year ended Adjustment For the
31 December for the year ended
2016 combination 31 December
as previously  using merger 2016
reported accounting as restated
TET THET TET
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e (A, Net cash (used in)/generated
s 2B & 58 from operating activities (66,292) 96,322 30,030
REXBMGE HE Net cash generated from
HEE investing activities 98,177 (64,556) 33,621
MEXBMAZE S Net cash used in financing
ERE activities (37,100) (82,105) (119,205)
ReRRSEEEE Net increase in cash and cash
ZIEINFERR equivalents (5,215) (50,339) (55,554)
FzBEekRE Cash and cash equivalent at the
%EIEH beginning of the year 145,649 111,191 256,840
NI e SR A R R Effect of foreign exchange rate
FEE changes, net (2,677) (16,035) (18,712)
FRrBEe kRS Cash and cash equivalent at
%{HIEH the end of the year 137,757 44,817 182,574
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0. MEXRKMELEEB2HK

40.

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Eft-2MEAT

FEHRFUR
RRz5E &3 TRk ES &3t
Due to a non-
controlling
shareholders of
a subsidiary and Convertivble
shareholders Borrowings bond Total
Tin TiEn TiEn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-Z—+5—f—H As at 1 January 2017 407,774 355,453 — 763,007

BERERE Financing cash flow (68,045) 83,449 — 19,881

INEFIR Exchange realignment 4,477 23,123 — 23,123

EREISEE Other non-cash movement:

FERTHE Interest payable — 57 2,334 2,391

RRERB AR Issue of convertible bond for

AARES acquisition of subsidiary — — 316,350 316,350

RZZE—tFTZA=T—B&E Netdebt as at 31 December

BFE 2017 344,206 462,082 318,684 1,124,972

(BERS 40. NON-CASH TRANSACTION

FEHFBRERS - Major non-cash transaction:

i) "8 —+t&F+ = A (i) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
=T—HBHLEFE - AEEBK Group has transferred HK$50,049,000 (2016:
50,049,000 B L (ZF — /R F : HKS$Nil) from payment for acquisition of patents to
THET)BWBEENNRERE intangible assets.

BILEE -
(il RBE_ZE—+F+_A=1+— (ii) During the year ended 31 December 2017, Group

AIEFE  AEBEMHELE LD
2EMNBAREBEERER—RHR
RBETHESTFMAIANER
NE W E K FEE 2 IR
Ko #REBH AE1,752,000,000
B BIEERSR0036FTH
2 17{E¥77/93,700,000,000 fi%
KRABFEG  ARAEBEEE
420,000,000 HEITH) 4% 2 B A]

154 Group Sense (International) Limited ® Annual Report 2017

acquired the entire equity interest in Fullocean
Group from CIIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Century Sunshine and WU, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability. The total consideration of approximately
HK$1,752,000,000 comprise of 3,700,000,000 new
shares of the Company at issue price of HK$ 0.36
per share and 4% coupon convertible bond in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$420,000,000.
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40. kRER 5 (&)

(i) B=2=—T—F+-_A=+—H
HFE  AEEEHTHE (=
T — N4 10,401,000 7T ) |
E%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ\@%&%

M. EEEKHF

AEEURLEEEEABEFNERDN
HBERMFE13 1424 K27 -

42, REHE L HE

AEERBEZHELHHEARESET
BRFENEIEIES -MEZHE
BEH—E_FF-

RZE—+EFE+=-A=+—H " K&
B&E T Bl 2 & HE R RKE
VEMNHSERE  HEEERPTE
N

40. NON-CASH TRANSACTION (continued)

41.

42,

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group has transferred HK$Nil (2016:
HK$10,401,000) from long term deposits to
property, plant and equipment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s borrowings, which are secured by
certain assets of the Group, are included in notes 13,
14, 24 and 27.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office premises and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to twenty years.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

—E—tF = RF
2017 2016
FET FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 3,484 1,505
RE_FEZFERFE(BIE  Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive
BREME) 4,143 4,086
7,627 5,591
43. &L 43. COMMITMENTS

B EXE43 2 R EHE L H B
Sh - REERHEHRINE NIIEXR
HE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 43 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

—E—tF —T—RK
2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRI AVERERE - Contracted, but not provided for:
Y - BB KRR Property, plant and equipment 24,729 10,038
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BHE—

4. ERBBEALTRS

T—+F+ = A=+—H |FFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

(a) BRELSHMBHRREMELHFL
WRZH  REAR - KEEA T
JERNEEALRS :

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with related parties

during the year:

Bz BE
—E—tF —E-RF
+-A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HFE EE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
P &E FTET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
R—fAEARIHEE Sales to a joint venture (i) 2,948 2,921
MERERARSYFZE  Management fee paid to
BE intermediate holding company (ii) 1,200 1,200
MEZIERARSM2E  Management fee paid to an
BE intermediate holding company (iif) 12,657 14,027
m—ERZNBLREE  Purchase of goods from a fellow
B m subsidiary (iil) 15,401 17,114
Pt 5E Notes:

A—&E&ERANHEDREAEE
METERPHE 2 AFRERRE
FOETT ©

)

RAERZERABSN2E
/100,000 # 7L HER

(ii) BE%RE

ux—rx%ﬁﬂxiﬁléﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬁtﬁﬁ
REZRZBEAR - R=ZT—+
F+—A= +E|7E5)ZL|&E%7—K/¥E.
Z BIFTETT

R—_E—+tF+—A=+H"
BEEBEREBR AT - Sure
Sino Global Limited * 425 3¢
HANRF V2 EEH#E @ A4
AIIEFRR0.36/8 T Z BI&E1T

(iii)

3,700,000,000 A% & i@ A% - I 2
1774 4858 420,000,000 /& JTHY
4% ZB A MBRES - IEAIK

BACFRE 2B -
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The sales to a joint venture was made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

()

The management fee paid to an intermediate holding
company was charged at a monthly rate of HK$100,000.

(if)

The transactions was made between the Fullocean Group
and the fellow subsidiaries held by Century Sunshine prior
to the completion of the acquisition of Fullocean Group on
30 November 2017.

(iii)

On 30 November 2017, the Company issued
3,700,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
at a price of HK$0.36 and 4% coupon convertible
bond with principal amount of HK$420,000,000, in
aggregate, as consideration for the acquisition of
Fullocean Group, pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement entered into by Capital Idea Investments
Limited, the Sure Sino Global Limited , Century
Sunshine and the Company.
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. ERBAEALTRZ(E)

45.

(c)

AEETZEBEASTRM

s=0e e E—PHBER
FAF5 R MIsE8

X5 (a)(ii) X (a)(iii) T8 2 8 =
AR ZINEK ETRAIZE 14A
EFTEMNBEERS -

R—_ZE—+F+-_HA=+—8"
I B 49 5 344,206,000 78 7T
(ZF — /X4 : 407,774,000
TL) c ARBAEET 5K
BER12EAREE -

BERE s 2EMT A

SEHSBMT ARBREHK 2 EREE
mT :

—E—+F+=-A=1+—H
31 December 2017

44. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Further details of directors’ fee end emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transaction in respect of items
(a)(ii) and (a)(iii) above also constitute connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2017, the loan to shareholders
is approximately HK$344,206,000 (2016:
HK$407,774,000). The amount is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and are not repayable within 12
months.

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

EWMEE Financial assets
BXRR &
FE W kg ERMEE W
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments — 3,000 3,000
JARBZEZER/ Financial assets included in
BE long term deposits 60 — 60
JEUNE S ERFR & Trade and bills receivables
JE UL =1 296,988 — 296,988
I AFENMIE - #E& K& Financial assets included in
H e W kI8 2 & Bl prepayments, deposits and
BE other receivables 9,903 —_ 9,903
Y& & A RIBRK Amounts due from joint
ventures 1,424 — 1,424
EEBRITIER Pledged bank deposits 33,981 — 33,981
RekReFEER Cash and cash equivalents 172,854 — 172,854
515,210 3,000 518,210
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45. ZERE s 2 €M T A(E) 45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
SRS T AERKERRZERE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
T financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

—E—+F+=-A=1+—H
31 December 2017

cREE Financial liabilities
R
RAGT&
ZEMEaE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
FET
HK$’000
JERTE B AR Trade payables 113,516
B 7 ELAth A~ SR I8 K2 Financial liabilities included in other payables
[EEtEBRzemAME  and accruals 63,370
EE7 Borrowings 462,082
JERT— KB AR Amounts due to a non-controlling shareholder of
FEFE B IR B 2 IR a subsidiary 152
JETR 3R 2 3RIR Amounts due to shareholders 344,206
AR E S Convertible bond 318,684
1,302,010
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45. RERE s 2@ T A(E) 45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

—E—7Ft+=-A=1—H
31 December 2016

SRMEE Financial assets
Bk At e
& W FRIR TREE L]
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(=)
(restated)
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments — 29,085 29,085
YRREZE 2/ Financial assets included in
BE long term deposits 36 — 36
JEUE B BRI Trade receivables 210,500 — 210,500
DI ATERZIE %4 Kk Financial assets included in
HMERFIBL &/ prepayments, deposits and
BE other receivables 8,069 — 8,069
JEW & & A RIBRIK Amounts due from joint
ventures 672 — 672
EEBRITER Pledged bank deposits 53,461 — 53,461
RekReFEER Cash and cash equivalents 182,574 — 182,574
455 312 29,085 484 397
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45.

46.

RER& S 2EMTA(E)

—E—Ft+=-A=1+—H
31 December 2016

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

cREE Financial liabilities
12
KAETE
ZEBEE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
FHET
HK$'000
(&&E5)
(restated)
JERTE B AR Trade payables 49,696
B 7 EL At AT 3R I8 K2 Financial liabilities included in other payables
[EEtEBRzemAME  and accruals 65,487
B Borrowings 355,453
JERT— KB AR Amounts due to a non-controlling shareholder of
FEFE B IR B 2 FRIR a subsidiary 216
JERTAR B 2 kI8 Amounts due to shareholders 407,774
878,626

TMIREZAVFERAFES

n

EREDHEARBcEREERA
BZRFE - TEEIF LR H
HERENIFEMEREAHLER
& HEEmEMRS - BIBRAEEH
Rt E TAKREHREHE -

AT ETE A FEE - LT
A {4t 38 5 132k AR £ DR E A
% - EATEEARREZ I Lk
BTG £ 12 2 AT R AR
A B oL B EHOE R T8 2 918 (R4
BB -

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of
the Group’s financial assets and liabilities, except
for an unlisted equity available-for-sale investments
and an unlisted debt available-for-sale investments,
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The unlisted equity available-for-sale investments are
stated at cost less impairment as their fair values cannot
be reliably measured. The fair value of an unlisted debt
available-for-sale investment at fair value through profit
or loss is derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in an
active market for identical assets or liabilities.
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46. TR T A AV ERAFES 46.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
|(E) OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
THRINMAEE 22T A2 AFE The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
FEER hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:
BERFEIRNEE Assets measured at fair value:
R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—H As at 31 December 2017

APEHERA
Fair value
measurement using
WEEBME BATEE EXAFUER
ZHE BAE BAE
Quoted

prices in  Significant  Significant

active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(F14R) (%28) (E34) Bt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
FET TAT TET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HHERE Available-for-sale investments:
EBEE Debt investment — — _ _
—R"E+=ZA=+—H As at 31 December 2016
AFEHERA
Fair value
measurement using

WERME  EAUHEE EANIER

ZB(E LN YN |

Quoted Significant Significant

markets inputs inputs
(B14) (F28) (B34) Bt
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TR TAET TAET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AHEHERE Available-for-sale investments:

EBRE Debt investment 22,245 — — 22,245
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47.

ERMTACAVFERAFES

—tF+-A=1t—H &%
ITEM{ETTH?”A?TEJEZ%EEETE
RBE(ZE-—A"ERAVEFEZ
TREENAE &) -

RAEERN  SHEERTRAES
1TREFE2R N FEAECHL EE
B B3R NALEEARBEH(—F
—NFE) e

BEEEEERBERBER

AEETZS/MT EBEAH u”jETx
B WS 5 IR A b YRR
RekReFEER RHK:
Eﬁ#ﬁfﬁfﬂ_m 3%%@7&/\%3

rEER - BN E SRR BMENR
IE fEmk - BN —RBIE A RIFEE
H%%Z IR - AREN —BIRERZHK
IH o

AEBERTAELNTERARAE

ERR RBERERKINERE
%%AMHT&H gfiﬁt;*éﬁmﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ
BRI R
AEBZEERRETEREHEKE
SR K;‘%lfﬁkﬁriﬁwﬁﬁ/\
VPEEERBOEBR ZIRFE - R
= +-_A=+t—BrAAE

FHEERKESERREEHERBI2%
—E—RFE+ZA=+—"H: BBk
47%) ° B LR P REIRERKZ N
R EREASRERKEXEEKE
AEEFE - BBEEERRRZE&
K AEBEBRECZR—EAS -
BEETCTEERTE  FEEMREM
B - AR ERERER E FE pE YR B
BHAETS o %%'$%I TE HiZE )
SIEER EWE ZEER 20 W E &
2 AR AN E ¢ REVEL B 5

ZRBEEE - BtmE $$l§$
ARAEEZ EERREZEEEY
RIEFE -

RN AEBERZN L EEBE 25
SHRTEE - L ESRIB LR

46.

47.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2017 (2016
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
comprise available-for-sale investments, trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, long
term deposits, pledged bank deposits, balances with
the associate and a joint venture, trade payables,
other payables, borrowings, an amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and amount
due to a shareholder.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign
currency risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The Group has been largely
dependent on a small number of customers for a
substantial portion of its business. Over 32% (31
December 2016: over 47%) of the Group’s trade
receivables as at 31 December 2017 were due from
the Group’s five largest customers. The failure of these
customers to make the required payments could have
a negative impact on the Group’s operating results.
In order to minimise the credit risk, management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is properly managed and significantly
reduced.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.
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HE—

47.

BREBEERERBEGE)

AEEEMEMEE(BRRE LR
TEHEER BREBSHERLERE
B AHEERE  BREERFK
BE QPR LB ERENFA -« %
T MEMEBUHTEAZEREE) Z
SERBREBHNOLTKRE  mERZ
Re LRBASFNEETRZRAE -

FLASE lﬁﬁﬁ‘%ﬂﬁ BRKE ZRR 2
SERE - HE-TNE(CBERHY
ﬁ‘“#&%ﬁﬁﬁf 22WEE -

REENKREERBESHRE TAE
RHEHESERER ZTAEEZH
TRHIANGREE(NEWRE SR
F)ZBNEER - WIERRE R 2
REREHBMS °

$%3§Fﬁfﬁfﬂ%?ﬂ&ﬁ?ﬂ§ﬁ%ﬁ

BOEEFHEERER LT RRE
¥1§°ZIKEIE’\_T +¥+=-A
=t —H—FAIHRITERIR
FAREERBRNIFRERA -

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and
bill receivables available-for-sale investments, amounts
due from joint ventures and the associate and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in notes 22 to the financial statements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings and banking facilities. The Group’s
bank borrowings would mature in less than one year as
at 31 December 2017 based on the carrying value of
borrowings reflected in the financial statements.

R (B BRAR « 2017 BERE 163



MBWMRME (&)
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2017

47. R EEBEERBE(E) 47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

REEHR - AEFTHRARFTIER The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
BEE  NEEemABEZERHARR as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
™o

0

7/

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

—ZE—+tH+=-B=+-—H
31 December 2017

EEX HLR=ER HEB-—F st
On Less than Over

demand 3 months 1 year Total

FET FEx FEx FET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

B E FERR Trade payables 54,817 58,699 — 113,516
51| 4% EL fth JE A~ TRIE K% Financial liabilities included in

BAER ERAE other payables and accruals 63,370 — — 63,370

T Borrowings 83,815 — 378,267 462,082

e —RMEB A A Amounts due to a non-

FEFE IR 3R 2 3B controlling shareholder of a

subsidiary 152 — — 152

e AR ER 2 FUR Amounts due to shareholders — — 344,206 344,206

gk ES Convertible bond — — 318,684 318,684

202,154 58,699 1,041,157 1,302,010

—E-RE+ZHA=1—H
31 December 2016
EEXk LR=ER HiB—F BEt
On  Less than Over

demand 3 months 1 year Total

THET TET TET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

(F=&%)

(Restated)

ENEZER Trade payables 13,005 36,691 — 49,696
5I) A B 1< /I8 & Financial liabilities included in

BrERZERARE other payables and accruals 59,560 5,927 - 65,487

fEm Borrowings 81,642 — 273,811 355,453

e — KB AR Amounts due to a non-

FEFEHIAR R 2 FIR controlling shareholder of a

subsidiary 216 — — 216

SRR3R 2 FRA Amounts due to shareholders — — 407,774 407,774

154,423 42,618 681,585 878,626
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

47. B EREBEEHERBE(E)

TRETEEMMESERTIENER The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
T AREKRBEEXZ SRR end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible

B - HHREMRKARET G 2
GRE(NEBEEERAB IR
BEZFAEN)

change in the Renminbi and Japanese yen exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities).

B A ®hn,
288 ()R>
Change Increase/
Change in profit (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*

SBEIL

%
%

THT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000

—®-t£+=-A
=t+-—-H

E T A TR

31 December 2017

If the Hong Kong dollar

B2fE : weakens against:
AR Renminbi 4 7,666 —
=] Japanese yen 4 57 —
EBTLAATERER  |If the Hong Kong dollar

F1E : strengthens against:
ARE Renminbi 4 (7,666) -
H Japanese yen 4 (57) —
—E-RF+=A 31 December 2016

=+—H 46,325
EBTTAATERER  If the Hong Kong dollar

8218 : weakens against:
ARK Renminbi (restated) 4 7,037 —
H Japanese yen 4 123 —
ERBTLAATERER  If the Hong Kong dollar

1A strengthens against:
ARKE Renminbi (restated) 4 (7,037) —
=] Japanese yen 4 (123) —

B EstER Excluding accumulated losses
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2017

47. R EEBEERBE(E) 47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AEBERER TZ2ARDRE
AEBERSELE  YHFERCE
AEE - DXHEEBRIESRRE
B o

AEFEERHEARNERE  WREELE
AR 2 BB & B E R R
B o ERIFAFABRELEARERBE - K
SENSMRRRLEERLZFITHR
hBeRBE_ZT—tF+_A=1+—
BR-_E—RNF+_A=+—HIF
B EBE BERBFILELS -

AEBENRB L R(REEER R
HEB)EREA - AEEZHRE
MBI R FFHRIR— o MEHRE
ZMENLEMT ¢

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which
is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the current ratio over one.
The current ratios as at the end of the reporting periods
were as follows:

—g—t%F —TAF
t=A=+-8 +-A=+-H
31 December 31 December

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

(&&E:75)

(Restated)

MENEE Current assets 763,067 656,214
REaE Current liabilities 300,843 216,380
MEN L Current ratio 2.54 3.03
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

48. A1 ) 2 AR R TR/ 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
AR ARG BAR 72 ik R &k Information about the statement of financial position of
N the Company at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
—E—+tHF —TE-RF

t=A=+—-RA +-A=+—H

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
MEBARZZE Investments in subsidiaries 1,752,000 —
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
JE W BT /B R R 5RIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 555,294 444 257
TR FRIE Prepayments 707 456
B& MIRTTHES Cash and bank balances 87,081 59,793
MBNE EHERR Total current assets 643,082 504,506
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HihEH BN EAER  Other payables and accruals 6,426 1,204
REEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 636,656 503,302
EEABERRBAE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 2,388,656 503,302
FRBEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
FETBY B8 2 RIFIR Amounts due to subsidiary 60,000 60,000
B Borrowing 155,314 —
JE S S A1 IR R B IA Amount due to ultimate holding
company 367 —
FLEMIBERE Deferred tax liability 16,717 —
AR ES Convertible bond 318,684 —
551,082 60,000
BEEFE Net assets 1,837,574 443,302
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2017

48. KN B 2 B BARR TR (E) 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)
—E—+F —T—AE

+=RA=+—-H +ZA=+—H

31 December 31 December

2017 2016
TET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
R E EQUITY
BEEITIRAR Issued capital 657,439 287,439
& (PR EE) Reserves (note) 1,180,135 155,863
IR 4B ER Total equity 1,837,574 443,302
Mg HRER TN \F=A=++H The financial statement was approved and authorized
KEFFEMEEETE  AHTI for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2018
EEREEE and was signed on its behalf by:
L MEZ Lt
Mr. Shum Sai Chit Ms. Chi Bi Fen
EE EF
Director Director
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BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

48. XA R Z B MM R (4E) 48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)
FiaE Note:
RARZEBERZENT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
TRRES
BAEER BARY ERRERE B EEy | am
Share Capital ~ Convertible
premium  Contributed  redemption  bond equity Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses Total
FHT FEL FET FET FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ- F-A—-AR As at 1 January 2016 601,060 21,976 419 — (446,083) 177,372

FEBBREZABRAR Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year — — — — (21,509) (21,509)

RZZ—RE+ZA=1+—H As at 31 December 2016 and

k=Z—+%#-f-A 1 January 2017 601,060 21,976 419 - (467,592) 155,863
EEFERZABELE Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - (21,293) (21,293)
BITERIR(MBRRIDEITE  Issue of ordinary share, net with
A) shares issuing expenses 959,017 - — — - 959,017
BETABRRESFGHZET Deferred tax related to
A issurance of convertible
bond — — — (17,102) — (17,102)
BRI BRES Issue of convertible bond - - - 103,650 - 103,650
RZZT—+F+ZA=1+—H Asat31December 2017 1,560,077 21,976 419 86,548 (488,885) 1,180,135
KRB ZHARBIERE-NLNL=ZF The Company’'s contributed surplus represents the
KRR 2D ETRIFTETZEEE excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
Ak EE 2B R RGN 2~ FEHE acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior
B AN SRR D METT 2 AR B RR to the listing of the Company’s shares in 1993, over
DEEZEMN - BIE—NAN\—F8R the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
ENRDE —HEARAES TEBER exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda Companies Act
T A ABSBRIEARZZEREKE 1981, a company may make distributions to its members
EE DR o out of the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

RS (B BRAT « 2017 BERE 169



MBWMRME (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
BE-_ZT—+tF+=-_H=+—HI-FE For the year ended 31 December 2017

49.

50.

e BB R

ETHURESHEETEHOE - URE
AREENZH5 -

PR —F—tF+—A=1BREX
AEEMS - AEBECHHARZEST
ZEBAHERAHENX - MRLR
BWAR MR EANLLRESED
TEY  FIOKFREEH -EAA

I
SEKE o

RETOGES B EREK

HEaMBRER_ZE-—NF=H
“tHHERSESSHAERKET
£ -

49.

50.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation.

In respect of the acquisition of Fullocean Group on
30 November 2017, the Group has applied merger
accounting method for the business combination
under common control. Comparative amounts in the
condensed consolidated income statement and relevant
notes have been restated as if the business of Fullocean
Group had always been carried out by the Group.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2018.
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Financial Summary

A EW AR E R BomER 2 HP This summary does not form part of the audited financial

—EBR ° statements.
E S RESULTS
“T-0fF
MA—AZE
“T-0fF
+-A S Bz
=+-B ZE—R"F CZEB-t%
HIf] +=A T=A
For the =+—H =+—H
period ILEE ILEE
from  For the year For the year
HZE=A=T-HLEE 1 April ended ended
For the year ended 31 March 2015 to 31 31 31
“Z-MF& —Z-FF  December  December  December
2014 2015 2015 2016 2017

TET TET TR TR TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

(m&5)
(Restated)
izt (i)
Note (ii)
WA Revenue 349,382 223,933 139,537 1,122,905 1,487,331
Fini(B8),/ & F (Loss)/profit before tax (86,789) (110,504) 265 215,163 239,370
s Income tax (16) (13) — (56,811) (55,303)
REE /HE(ER) /% F (Loss)/profit for the year/period (86,805) (110,517) 265 158,353 184,067
FElbEH,/ (BR) : Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
ARAIREREA Equity holders of the Company (80,409) (107,460) 268 137,061 168,320
FEIEHIM R Non-controlling interests (6,396) (3,057) (3) 212,291 15,747
REE /HE(ER) /% F (Loss)/profit for the year/period (86,805) (110,517) 265 158,352 184,067
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Financial Summary

EEHAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
“T-1F R ZE-tF
+=A +=A +=A
W=B=+—H =+—H =+—H =t-H
As at 31 March As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
“E-mE  —E-hF December December  December
2014 2015 2015 2016 2017
FEL FET FEL FEL TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(ZE75)
(Restated)
Mz (i)
Note (ii)
BESE Total assets 349,791 339,496 853,742 2,126,175 2,558,801
BESBE Total liabilities (102,861) (129,756) (367,240) (967,240)  (1,435,557)
246,930 209,740 486,502 1,158,935 1,123,244
KARRERBA Equity attributable to equity
FE{ R i holders of the Company 250,509 216,311 492,765 1,016,076 1,131,080
et £ Non-controlling interests (3,579) (6,571) (6,263) 142,859 (7,836)
246,930 209,740 486,502 1,158,935 1,123,244
Bzt -

() HERBEEEBBZHRBEFDHEARFED
T Z EFFHRMAER -

(il AEEER=_ZE—tFERBAEHITAHREN
EWME - LAEHEREZEH T2 EBAHIIE - =
T—ANFEZHRESEE THESS -

Note:

(i)  The comparative figures of the results and asset and liabilities have
been prepared based on the previous annual report published in the
corresponding years.

(i) The Group has applied the merger accounting method in the
preparation of financial statements for the combination with entity
under common control in 2017. The comparative information for the
year 2016 has been restated accordingly.
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